
-

City of Phoenix
Heart of the Rogue Valley

City Council
www. phoenixoregon.gov

541-535-1955

City Council Meeting
Agenda

November 06, 2023
6:30 p.m. Public Meeting

Hybrid Meeting in Person and Via Zoom
Phoenix Plaza Civic Center 220 N. Main St.Nia Zoom

A complete agenda packet is available on the city’s website. This meeting is being conducted in person and
virtually to allow for public participation. A recording of the meeting in its entirety will be posted to
www.phoenixoreqon.qov. To comment on agenda items, please write your name on the sign-in sheet and
include the item number; if attending via Zoom raise your hand when the topic is discussed by Council. If
you need special accommodations, please give the City Recorder 72-hours prior notice.

Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://usO6web.zoom. us/i/89893265452?pwd=64Jh8CUm-7B2obuxJ7cZLI9mkIi OQ. h88PGizcRbtniDwC
Passcode: 413379

Or One tap mobile: +1 346 248 7799, 89893265452#, *413379# US (Houston) +1 669 444
9171, 89893265452#, *413379# US

Or Telephone: Dial (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)

US (San Jose)
÷1 6694449171 US
+1 669 900 6833
+1 719 359 4580 US
÷1 253 205 0468 US
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
+1 305 224 1968 US
+1 309 205 3325 US
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 360 209 5623 US
+1 386 347 5053 US
+1 507 473 4847 US
+1 564 217 2000 US
+1 646 931 3860 US
+1 689 278 1000 US

Webinar ID: 898 9326 5452
Passcode: 413379
International numbers available: httrs://us06web.zoom.us/u/kcFhKD8POa

City of Phoenix, Council Meeting Agenda

1



1. Call to Order! Roll Call I Confirmation of a Quorum
Except as provided in Section 33 of the City Charter, a minimum of four Council Members are needed for
a quorum and to conduct city business. If the Mayor is needed to establish a quorum, then he/she may
become a voting member for that meeting (Phoenix Municipal Code, Chap. 2.28.020.A.4).

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Presentations
a. Eric Swanson — Employee Recognition
b. Will Volpert — Chamber of Commerce Update 5

4. Public Comments
This item is for persons wanting to present information or raise an issue, not on the agenda. Each person
shall be limited to three minutes and may not allocate their time to others unless authorized by the
Presiding Officer. To comment, please write your name on the sign-in sheet. When your name is called,
step forward to the podium and state your name and address for the record. If attending virtually, please
raise your hand and wait to be allowed to speak. When your name is called, please unmute yourself and
state your name and address for the record. (In accordance with state law, a recording of the meeting
will be available at city hall, but only your name will be included in the meeting minutes). While the
Council or staff may briefly respond to your statement or question, the law does not permit action on,
or extended discussion of, any item not on the agenda except under special circumstances.

5. Consent Agenda
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be adopted by one motion. There will be
no separate discussion of these items unless it is requested by a member of the Council or staff
If so requested, that item will be pulled from the Consent Agenda and considered separately immediately
following approval of the remaining items.

a. Reports for Information & Possible Action:
1. Resolution No. 1117 — A Resolution Adopting the Final October 2023 Reimagined

Regional Long-Term Recovery Plan Prepared by the Jackson County Long-Term
Recovery Group in Collaboration with Jackson County Residents, Stakeholders,
and the Jurisdictions Affected by the 2020 Almeda and Obenchain Fires 12

2. Charloffe Ann Water District Hwy 99 Waterline Relocation 16

b. Minutes to Approve and File:
1. Minutes from City Council Meeting October 16, 2023 21

6. Consent Agenda Items Pulled for Discussion

7. New Business
a. Resolution No. 1118 — A Resolution of the City of Phoenix Authorizing a Loan from the

Special Public Works Fund by Entering into a Financing Contract with Oregon
Infrastructure Finance Authority 26

City of Phoenix, Council Meeting Agenda

2



8. Ordinance: Reading/Adoption
a. Ordinance No. 1034 — An Ordinance of the City of Phoenix to Amend Chapter 2.11 of

and Add Chapter 2.12 to the Land Development Code Regarding the Holding Zone and
an Exclusion Agriculture Overlay to Certain Properties to be Annexed to the City
Through ORD. 1033 47

9. Staff Reports
a. City Attorney
b. City Manager — 2021 Strategic Plan Update 64
c. Deputy City Manager

10. Mayor and Council Comments I Reports
Any Councilor may make an announcement or raise any item of business that is not on the agenda.
While other Councilors or city staff may briefly respond or comment, the law does not permit action on,
or extended discussion ol any item not on the agenda except under special circumstances. If extended
deliberation or potential action on a matter is desired, Council may direct staff to place the item on a
future meeting agenda.

11. Adjournment

City of Phoenix, Council Meeting Agenda

3



I
City of Phoenix
Heart of the Rogue Valley

To be scheduled: City Council

To be scheduled: PHURA
. Annual Report

November 13, 2023

November 20, 2023

December 02, 2023

December 04, 2023

December 04, 2023

December 11, 2023

December 18, 2023

December 21, 2023

January 02, 2024

January 08, 2024

Planning Commission Meeting
6:30 pm at 220 N. Main St.

City Council Meeting
6:30 pm at 220 N. Main St.

Christmas Tree Lighting
220 N. Main St.
5:00 pm—7:00 pm

PHURA Meeting
5:30 pm at 220 N. Main St.

City Council Meeting
6:30 pm at 220 N. Main St.

Planning Commission Meeting
6:30 pm at 220 N. Main St.

City Council Meeting
6:30 pm at 220 N. Main St.

Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting
6:00 pm at 220 N. Main St.

City Council Meeting (Tuesday)
6:30 pm at 220 N. Main St.

Planning Commission Meeting
6:30 pm at 220 N. Main St.

All of the above meetings are tentative and are subject to change.

Future agenda summary 11106123

Upcoming City of Phoenix Meetings:

City Council Agenda Report

44



r

55



Y
E

A
R

IN
R

E
V

IE
W

.
B

oa
rd

of
D

ir
ec

to
rs

•
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

M
em

be
rs

hi
p

M
ee

ti
ng

s
•

M
ed

ia
:

P
re

ss
,A

dv
er

ti
si

ng
,a

nd
N

et
w

or
ki

ng
•

M
em

be
rs

hi
p

•
V

is
it

or
G

ui
de

•
E

ve
nt

s
an

d
R

ib
bo

n
C

ut
ti

ng
s

M
is

si
on

S
ta

te
m

en
t:

“W
e

su
p
p
o
rt

sm
al

l
b

u
si

n
es

s
su

c
c
e
ss

an
d

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
bu

il
di

ng
in

an
d

ar
o
u
n
d

P
ho

en
ix

,
O

re
g
o
n
.”

66



Q
ua

rt
er

ly
M

em
be

rs
hi

p
M

ee
ti

ng
s

•
Q

u
ar

te
r

I
•

Q
u
ar

te
r

2
•

Q
u
ar

te
r

3
•

Q
u
ar

te
r

4

-
P

ho
en

ix
L

ib
ra

ry
-

P
ho

en
ix

C
ou

ns
el

in
g

C
en

te
r

-
Ir

on
S

k
il

le
t!

P
et

ro
-
O

re
go

n
C

he
es

e
C

av
e

W
at

ch
fo

rm
or

e.
..

M
em

be
rs

hi
p

m
ee

ti
ng

s
w

ill
be

ev
er

y
o
th

er
m

on
th

in
20

24
.

4
b

Q
ua

rt
er

3
M

em
be

rs
hi

p
M

ee
ti

ng
at

th
e

Ir
on

Sk
ill

et

77



CD

-D
-‘
CD

CD

..••

0

(D 4.

(In -‘ ::; C
0 1) —‘ Q’q

CD
‘-I

9 0
tn(D I-’

-‘

BC
0
(D

88



V
isitor

G
uide

•
D

istributed
locally

and
to

T
ravel

O
regon

W
elcom

e
C

enters
•

F
unding

provided
by

th
e

C
ham

ber
of

C
om

m
erce,

T
ravelS

outhern
O

regon,advertising,and
donations

•
2024

version
w

ill
be

distributed
locally

and
to

th
e

M
edford

A
irport.

-
.

99



...
CD

= OO

CD

—.

vC
-‘

-h

‘4, 3
CD14n

C,)
F%)
0
1%)
. B

m
CD

C,,

1010



T
he

Y
ear A

head

•
B

uild
on

th
e

foundation
of

our
first year

•
Increase

th
e

value
of

a
m

em
bership

•
A

dd
m

ore
com

m
unity

events
•

C
apacity

building
through

funding
and

a
p
art tim

e
em

ployee
•

S
trengthen

our
relationship

w
ith

th
e

C
ity

•
C

ollect
b
etter

data
and

visitor
tracking

•
G

row
m

em
bership

to
80+

•
Increase

netw
orking

opportunities
for

businesses
•

S
u

p
p

o
rt

sm
all

b
u

sin
ess

su
ccess

an
d

co
m

m
u

n
ity

building

1111



Agenda Item #: 5a1.

Agenda Report
City of Phoenix to Mayor and Council
Heart of the Rogue Valley

Agenda item title: Resolution Adopting the final October 2023 Rogue Reimagined Regional
Long-Term Recovery Plan.

Meeting Date: November 6, 2023

From: Joe Slaughter, Deputy City Manager

Action: Motion, Ordinance, XResolution, Information only, Other

SUMMARY
Consideration of a resolution adopting the final October 2023 Rogue Reimagined Regional
Long-Term Recovery Plan prepared by the Jackson County Long-Term Recovery Group in
collaboration with Jackson County residents, stakeholders, and the jurisdictions affected by the
2020 Almeda and Obenchain Fires.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION
The Jackson County Long-Term Recovery Group (JCLTRG) contracted with Urban Design
Associates (UDA) to complete a Regional Long-Term Recovery Plan (R-LTRP) following the
2020 Almeda and Obenchain Fires. The City of Phoenix supported these efforts with roughly
$180,000 in Municipal Wildfire Assistance Program (MWAP) funds that the City applied for on
behalf of the JCLTRG as pass-through funding for the effort. As was reported by Caryn
Wheeler Clay (Executive Director, JCLTRG) and Barry Long (Principal & President, UDA) in
their June 5, 2023 presentation and October 16, 2023 follow-up presentation to the Phoenix
Council, the R-LTRP is a comprehensive document intended to unite recovery resources with
remaining unmet needs following the fires and help impacted communities build resiliency
against future disasters. Rogue Reimagined, the name of this effort, is intended to be a
collaborative recovery planning process guided by the community.

Following significant disaster events, the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
uses its long-term community recovery assessment tool to analyze needs and determine short-
and long-term goals for recovery, rebuilding, and resilience. This document follows FEMA’s
framework for recovery, guided by the community’s vision for a reimagined Rogue Valley. This
R-LTRP is unique because it is multi-jurisdictional in nature. The Almeda and South
Obenchain Fires spanned a staggering distance through Jackson County and numbered
amongst the most destructive wildfires in Oregon’s history. The scale of this disaster and its
crossing of jurisdictional boundaries creates complexities for approvals, funding,
implementation, and more. The R-LTRP was designed to accommodate these complexities
and nuances, uniting all impacted jurisdictions in pursuit of recovery.

The final version of the plan can be found on the JCLTRG’s website, here:
https:Ilwww. rog uereimaq med. org/the-plan

COUNCIL GOALS SUPPORTED
Goal 1: Concise, transparent and frequent communication to build a culture of respect,

accountability and excellence. Leadership that is accessible, responsive and
proactive.

City Council Agenda Report

1212



Goal 14: Create and maintain the best disaster preparedness and fire-resistant community in
the Rogue Valley. Enhance public participation.

Goal 16: Continue pursuit of all available grant funding — public and private.

FISCAL IMPACT
The R-LTRP is helpful in identifying unmet needs and identifying projects/efforts needed to
support these unmet needs. The format and delivery of the plan is consistent with the federal
government’s expectations when reviewing requests for recovery funding. The plan should aid
in receiving funding toward completing identified disaster recovery projects.

RECOMMENDATION
Recommend approval.

PROPOSED MOTION
I move to approve Resolution 1117. Adopting the final October 2023 Rogue Reimagined
Regional Long-Term Recovery Plan prepared by the Jackson County Long-Term
Recovery Group in collaboration with Jackson County residents, stakeholders, and the
jurisdictions affected by the 2020 Almeda and Obenchain Fires.

ATTACHMENTS
• Draft Resolution 1117

City Council Agenda Report

1313



CITY OF PHOENIX
PHOENIX, OREGON

RESOLUTION NO.1117

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE FINAL OCTOBER 2023 ROGUE REIMAGINED
REGIONAL LONG-TERM RECOVERY PLAN PREPARED BY THE JACKSON

COUNTY LONG-TERM RECOVERY GROUP IN COLLABORATION WITH JACKSON
COUNTY RESIDENTS, STAKEHOLDERS, AND THE JURISDICTIONS AFFECTED

BY THE 2020 ALMEDA AND OBENCHAIN FIRES.

WHEREAS, the Jackson County Long-Term Recovery Group (JCLTRG) contracted
with Urban Design Associates (UDA) to complete a Regional Long-Term Recovery Plan
(R-LTRP) following the 2020 Almeda and Obenchain Fires; and

WHEREAS, the City of Phoenix supported these efforts with roughly $180,000 in
Municipal Wildfire Assistance Program (MWAP) funds that the City applied for on behalf
of the JCLTRG as pass-through funding for the effort; and

WHEREAS, the R-LTRP is a comprehensive document intended to unite recovery
resources with remaining unmet needs following the fires and help impacted
communities build resiliency against future disasters; and

WHEREAS, the Rogue Reimagined, the name of this effort, is intended to be a
collaborative recovery planning process guided by the community; and

WHEREAS, following significant disaster events, the Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) uses its long-term community recovery assessment tool to analyze needs
and determine short- and long-term goals for recovery, rebuilding, and resilience; and

WHEREAS, this document follows FEMA’s framework for recovery, guided by the
community’s vision for a reimagined Rogue Valley; and

WHEREAS, this R-LTRP is unique because it is multi-jurisdictional in nature. The
Almeda and South Obenchain Fires spanned a staggering distance through Jackson
County and numbered amongst the most destructive wildfires in Oregon’s history. The
scale of this disaster and its crossing of jurisdictional boundaries creates complexities
for approvals, funding, implementation, and more. The R-LTRP was designed to
accommodate these complexities and nuances, uniting all impacted jurisdictions in
pursuit of recovery. Now Therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PHOENIX, OREGON:
Section 1. The City of Phoenix adopts the final October 2023 Rogue Reimagined
Regional Long-Term Recovery Plan prepared by the Jackson County Long-Term
Recovery Group in collaboration with Jackson County residents, stakeholders, and the
jurisdictions affected by the 2020 Almeda and Obenchain Fires.

1414



Section 2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage by the
Council and signed by the Mayor.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Phoenix and signed in
authentication thereof at a regular meeting on the 06th day of November 2023.

Terry Baker, Mayor

ATTEST:

Bonnie Pickett, City Recorder

1515



Agenda Item #: 5a2.

Meeting Date: November 6, 2023

From: Tyler Duncan, RH2 Engineering, Inc.

Action: X Motion, — Ordinance, — Resolution, — Information only, Other

SUMMARY
Staff is requesting approval to award the Charlotte Ann Water District Hwy 99 Waterline
Relocation project.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION
The Charlotte Ann Water District Hwy 99 Waterline Relocation project was put out to bid
on October 5, 2023, with a bid opening date of October 26, 2023. The project will replace
the aging 12-inch waterline from north of Coleman Creek to south of Alder Street and
includes 3,293 linear feet of 16-inch ductile iron pipe, 41 water services, 12 fire hydrants, 4
concrete vaults, and 20 connections to existing water systems. These improvements are
necessary to relocate water infrastructure in preparation for ODOT’s redevelopment of
Highway 99 in this area.

The following bids were received from four bidders:
Pilot Rock Excavation, Inc. $2,056,365.00
NorthCore USA, LLC. $2,281,998.88
Central Pipeline, Inc. $2,609,319.00

FISCAL IMPACT
ODOT will pay for 34% of the project cost.

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that Council approve awarding the project to the apparent responsible
low bidder, Pilot Rock Excavation, LLC.

PROPOSED MOTION
“Motion to approve the award of the Charlotte Ann Water District Hwy 99 Waterline
Relocation contract to Pilot Rock Excavation, LLC.”

ATTACHMENTS
Recommendation of Bid Award
Bid Tabulation

Agenda Report
City of Phoenix to Mayor and Council
Heart of the Rogue Valley

Agenda item title: Charlotte Ann Water District Hwy 99 Waterline Relocation

City Council Agenda Report

1616



4.

October 30, 2023

Mr. Swanson
City Manager
City of Phoenix
220 N. Main St.
Phoenix, OR, 97535

Sent via: Email

Subject:

Dear Mr. Swanson:

The bids for the Charlotte Ann Water District Hwy 99 Waterline Relocation
project were opened at the Phoenix Civic Center on October 26, 2023 at 2:00
p.m. Of the three bids received, Pilot Rock Excavation, Inc. submitted the lowest
bid.

The bids for this project are as follows:

WASHINGTON
LOCATIONS

44
Bellingham

— Bothell (Corporate)

East Wenatchee

lssaquah

Richland

• Tacoma

OREGON
LOCATIONS

Medford

Portland

IDAHO
LOCATIONS

Nampa

Contractor Amount

Pilot Rock Excavation, Inc. $2,056,365.00

NorthCore USA, LLC $2,281,998.88

Central Pipeline, Inc. $2,609,319.00

Attached is a tabulation of all bids received along with the engineer’s estimate.

I reviewed Pilot Rock Excavation, Inc.’s bid and found it to be complete. RH2
recommends that Pilot Rock Excavation, Inc. be awarded the contract for this
project. If you have any questions regarding this recommendation, please feel
free to contact me at 425-471-8625 or tduncan@rh2.com.

Sincerely,
I

/ 211

Tyler Dufican, PE

Attachment: Bid Tabulation

RH2 ENGINEERING
Medford

3553 Arrowhead Drive, Suite 200
Medford, OR 97504

1.800.720.8052 / rh2.com

o
4. (

i/i

ilk1;ifi fif
Recommendation of Bid Award

10/30/23 11:57AM \\CORP.RH2.COM\PROJECTS\PROJ ECflDATA\PHX\23-0067\50 SDB\CAWD HWY 99 WATERLINE RELOCATION RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD .DOCX

1717



C
ity

of
P

ho
en

ix
C

ha
rl

ot
te

A
nn

W
at

er
D

is
tr

ic
t

H
w

y
9

W
at

er
li

ne
R

el
oc

at
io

n

B
id

T
ab

ul
at

io
n

D
at

e:
1
0
/2

7
/2

0
2
3

10
M

ob
ili

za
tio

n
1.5

A
pp

ar
en

t
L

ow
O

th
er

B
id

de
rs

$1
58

,4
00

.0
0

$
15

8,
40

0.
00

$
10

0,
00

0.
00

$
10

0,
00

0.
00

92
,9

51
.6

2
$

92
,9

51
.6

2

C
en

tr
al

P
ip

el
in

e,
In

c.

U
ni

t
Pr

ic
e

E
xt

en
de

d

$
35

0,
00

0.
00

$
35

0,
00

0.
00

20
T

em
po

ra
ry

W
or

k
Z

on
e

T
ra

ff
ic

C
on

tr
ol

,
C

om
pl

et
e

LS
1

$9
0,

00
0.

00
$

90
,0

00
.0

0
$

50
,0

00
.0

0
$

50
,0

00
.0

0
$

81
,0

70
.0

0
$

81
,0

70
.0

0
$

65
,0

00
.0

0
$

65
,0

00
.0

0

3D
E

ro
si

on
A

nd
S

ed
im

en
t

C
on

tr
ol

1.5
1

$6
,0

00
.0

0
$

6,
00

0.
00

$
7,

00
0.

00
$

7,
00

0.
00

$
1,

10
0.

00
$

1,
10

0.
00

$
2,

50
0.

00
$

2,
50

0.
00

40
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

Su
rv

ey
W

or
k

LS
1

$1
2,

00
0.

00
$

12
,0

00
.0

0
$

10
,0

00
.0

0
$

10
,0

00
.0

0
$

7,
70

0.
00

$
7,

70
0.

00
$

8,
50

0.
00

$
8,

50
0.

00

50
R

em
ov

al
O

f
S

tr
uc

tu
re

s
A

nd
O

bs
tr

uc
ti

on
s

LS
1

$6
,0

00
.0

0
$

6,
00

0.
00

$
50

,0
00

.0
0

$
50

,0
00

.0
0

$
17

,1
86

.9
3

$
17

,1
86

.9
3

$
2,

50
0.

00
$

2,
50

0.
00

60
P

re
-C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

P
ot

ho
li

ng
EA

37
$1

,0
08

.0
0

$
37

,2
96

.0
0

$
75

0.
00

$
27

,7
50

.0
0

$
57

0.
81

$
21

,1
19

.9
7

$
25

0.
00

$
9,

25
0.

00

16
In

ch
D

uc
til

e
Ir

on
Pi

pe
W

ith
R

es
tr

ai
ne

d
Jo

in
ts

A
nd

C
la

ss
E

LF
21

7
$2

70
.0

0
$

58
,5

90
.0

0
$

21
0.

00
$

45
,5

70
.0

0
$

26
4.

55
$

57
,4

07
.3

3
$

30
7.

00
$

66
,6

19
.0

0
B

ac
kf

ill

80
16

In
ch

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

W
ith

C
la

ss
E

B
ac

kf
ill

LF
30

72
$2

40
.0

0
$

73
7,

28
0.

00
$

20
0.

00
$

61
4,

40
0.

00
$

23
0.

81
$

70
9,

04
8.

32
$

27
3.

00
$

83
8,

65
6.

00

12
In

ch
D

uc
til

e
Ir

on
Pi

pe
W

ith
R

es
tr

ai
ne

d
Jo

in
ts

A
nd

C
la

ss
E

LF
61

$2
28

.0
0

$
13

,9
08

.0
0

$
17

0.
00

$
10

,3
70

.0
0

$
22

9.
92

$
14

,0
25

.1
2

$
28

9.
00

$
17

,6
29

.0
0

B
ac

kf
ill

10
0

8
In

ch
D

uc
til

e
Ir

on
Pi

pe
W

ith
R

es
tr

ai
ne

d
Jo

in
ts

A
nd

C
la

ss
E

LF
28

0
$2

10
.0

0
$

58
,8

00
.0

0
$

15
0.

00
$

42
,0

00
.0

0
$

17
6.

91
$

49
,5

34
.8

0
$

24
6.

00
$

68
,8

80
.0

0
B

ac
kf

ill

11
0

6
In

ch
D

uc
til

e
Ir

on
Pi

pe
W

ith
R

es
tr

ai
ne

d
Jo

in
ts

A
nd

C
la

ss
E

LF
79

0
$1

68
.0

0
$

13
2,

72
0.

00
$

14
0.

00
$

11
0,

60
0.

00
$

16
4.

24
$

12
9,

74
9.

60
$

14
8.

00
$

11
6,

92
0.

00
B

ac
kf

ill
4

In
ch

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

W
ith

R
es

tr
ai

ne
d

Jo
in

ts
A

nd
C

la
ss

F
17

4
$1

56
.0

0
$

27
,1

44
.0

0
$

15
0.

00
$

26
,1

00
.0

0
$

17
9.

96
$

31
,3

13
.0

4
$

10
6.

00
$

18
,4

44
.0

0
B

ac
kf

ill

13
0

2
In

ch
W

at
er

Pi
pe

W
ith

C
la

ss
E

B
ac

kf
ill

LF
33

0
$1

32
.0

0
$

43
,5

60
.0

0
$

85
.0

0
$

28
,0

50
.0

0
$

27
4.

02
$

90
,4

26
.6

0
$

14
5.

00
$

47
,8

50
.0

0

14
0

16
In

ch
C

on
ne

ct
io

n
To

24
In

ch
E

xi
st

in
g

M
ai

n
EA

1
$4

,8
00

.0
0

$
4,

80
0.

00
$

10
,0

00
.0

0
$

10
,0

00
.0

0
$

10
,0

35
.8

4
$

10
,0

35
.8

4
$

2,
50

0.
00

$
2,

50
0.

00

15
0

12
In

ch
C

on
ne

ct
io

n
T

o
12

In
ch

E
xi

st
in

g
M

ai
n

EA
1

$2
,8

80
.0

0
$

2,
88

0.
00

$
12

,0
00

.0
0

$
12

,0
00

.0
0

$
6,

43
0.

01
$

6,
43

0.
01

$
2,

00
0.

00
$

2,
00

0.
00

16
0

6
In

ch
C

on
ne

ct
io

n
T

o
10

In
ch

E
xi

st
in

g
M

ai
n

EA
3

$2
,6

40
.0

0
$

7,
92

0.
00

$
8,

00
0.

00
$

24
,0

00
.0

0
$

4,
43

8.
28

$
13

,3
14

.8
4

$
1,

50
0.

00
$

4,
50

0.
00

17
0

10
In

ch
C

on
ne

ct
io

n
To

10
In

ch
E

xi
st

in
g

M
ai

n
64

1
$2

,6
40

.0
0

$
2,

64
0.

00
$

11
,0

00
.0

0
$

11
,0

00
.0

0
$

4,
56

7.
75

$
4,

56
7.

75
$

1,
80

0.
00

$
1,

80
0.

00

18
0

6
In

ch
C

on
ne

ct
io

n
To

8
In

ch
E

xi
st

in
g

M
ai

n
EA

2
$2

,4
00

.0
0

$
4,

80
0.

00
$

11
,0

00
.0

0
$

22
,0

00
.0

0
$

4,
43

7.
92

$
8,

87
5.

84
$

1,
50

0.
00

$
3,

00
0.

00

19
0

8
In

ch
C

on
ne

ct
io

n
T

o
8

In
ch

E
xi

st
in

g
M

ai
n

64
4

$2
,4

00
.0

0
$

9,
60

0.
00

$
11

,0
00

.0
0

$
44

,0
00

.0
0

$
4,

50
9.

69
$

18
,0

38
.7

6
$

1,
50

0.
00

$
6,

00
0.

00

20
0

6
In

ch
C

on
ne

ct
io

n
To

6
In

ch
E

xi
st

in
g

M
ai

n
EA

5
$2

,1
60

.0
0

$
10

,8
00

.0
0

$
11

,0
00

.0
0

$
55

,0
00

.0
0

21
0

4
In

ch
C

on
ne

ct
io

n
T

o
4

In
ch

E
xi

st
in

g
M

ai
n

64
5

$1
,9

20
.0

0
$

9,
60

0.
00

$
11

,0
00

.0
0

$
55

,0
00

.0
0

22
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

T
ee

,
16

In
ch

By
16

In
ch

By
16

In
ch

EA
1

$4
,8

00
.0

0
$

4,
80

0.
00

$
4,

00
0.

00
$

4,
00

0.
00

23
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

T
ee

,
16

In
ch

By
16

In
ch

By
12

In
ch

EA
2

$4
,0

80
.0

0
$

8,
16

0.
00

$
3,

50
0.

00
$

7,
00

0.
00

24
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

T
ee

,
16

In
ch

By
16

In
ch

By
8

In
ch

EA
5

$3
,B

40
.0

0
$

19
,2

00
.0

0
$

3,
50

0.
00

$
17

,5
00

.0
0

2S
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

T
ee

,
16

In
ch

By
16

In
ch

By
6

In
ch

EA
14

$3
,6

00
.0

0
$

50
,4

00
.0

0
$

2,
50

0.
00

$
35

,0
00

.0
0

26
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

T
ee

,
8

In
ch

By
8

In
ch

By
8

In
ch

64
1

$2
,1

60
.0

0
$

2,
16

0,
00

$
1,

00
0.

00
$

1,
00

0.
00

27
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

T
ee

,
6

In
ch

By
6

In
ch

By
6

In
ch

EA
1

$1
,4

40
.0

0
$

1,
44

0.
00

$
1,

00
0.

00
$

1,
00

0.
00

5
13

,1
65

.8
1

$
65

,8
29

.0
5

$
1,

50
0.

00
$

7,
50

0.
00

5
4,

40
2.

34
$

22
,0

11
.7

0
$

1,
50

0.
00

$
7,

50
0.

00

5
3,

35
9.

55
$

3,
35

9.
55

$
4,

42
5.

00
$

4,
42

5.
00

5
2,

70
8.

90
$

5,
41

7.
80

$
3,

88
3.

00
$

7,
76

6.
00

5
2,

35
6.

35
$

11
,7

81
.7

5
$

3,
53

5.
00

$
17

,6
75

.0
0

S
2,

26
0.

65
$

31
,6

49
.1

0
$

3,
40

3.
00

$
47

,6
42

.0
0

$
95

7.
15

$
95

7.
15

5
57

8.
75

$
57

8.
75

S
2,

12
5.

00
$

2,
12

5.
00

5
1,

94
0.

00
$

1,
94

0.
00

C
\&

d
T

.b
H

W
Y

1818



C
ity

of
P

ho
en

ix

C
ha

rl
ot

te
A

nn
W

at
er

D
is

tr
ic

t
H

w
y

9
W

at
er

li
ne

R
el

oc
at

io
n

B
id

T
ab

ul
at

io
n

D
at

e:
1
0
/2

7
/2

0
2
3

A
pp

ar
en

t
L

ow
O

th
er

B
id

de
rs

28
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

T
ee

,
6

In
ch

By
6

In
ch

By
4

In
ch

EA

E
ng

in
ee

rs
E

st
im

at
e

U
ni

t
P

ri
ce

E
xt

en
de

d

$1
,2

00
.0

0
$

1,
20

0.
00

$
1,

00
0.

00
$

1,
00

0.
00

C
en

tr
al

P
ip

el
in

e,
In

c.

U
ni

t
Pr

ic
e

E
xt

en
de

d

$
1,

17
2.

75
$

1,
17

2.
75

$
1,

90
0.

00
$

1,
90

0.
00

29
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

R
ed

uc
er

,
12

in
ch

By
10

In
ch

EA
I

$3
,3

60
.0

0
$

3,
36

0.
00

$
1,

00
0.

00
$

1,
00

0.
00

$
99

7.
85

$
99

7.
85

$
2,

16
6.

00
$

2,
16

6.
00

30
0

D
uc

til
e

ir
on

Pi
pe

R
ed

uc
er

,
8

In
ch

By
6

In
ch

EA
1

$3
,0

00
.0

0
$

3,
00

0.
00

$
70

0.
00

$
70

0.
00

$
64

2.
55

$
64

2.
55

$
1,

81
8.

00
$

1,
81

8.
00

31
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

R
ed

uc
er

,
8

In
ch

By
4

In
ch

EA
1

$2
,8

80
.0

0
$

2,
88

0.
00

$
70

0.
00

$
70

0.
00

$
61

7.
25

$
61

7.
25

$
1,

79
5.

00
$

1,
79

5.
00

32
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

R
ed

uc
er

,
6

In
ch

By
4

In
ch

EA
2

$1
,0

80
.0

0
$

2,
16

0.
00

$
50

0.
00

$
1,

00
0.

00
$

54
1.

90
$

1,
08

3.
80

$
1,

45
4.

00
$

2,
90

8.
00

33
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

B
en

d,
16

In
ch

EA
2

$3
,6

00
.0

0
$

7,
20

0.
00

$
2,

00
0.

00
$

4,
00

0.
00

$
2,

00
3.

80
$

4,
00

7.
60

$
4,

74
7.

00
$

9,
49

4.
00

34
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

B
en

d,
12

In
ch

EA
8

$2
,4

00
.0

0
$

19
,2

00
.0

0
$

1,
50

0.
00

$
12

,0
00

.0
0

$
1,

13
9.

20
$

9,
11

3.
60

$
2,

32
3.

00
$

18
,5

84
.0

0

35
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

B
en

d,
8

In
ch

EA
23

$1
,3

20
.0

0
$

30
,3

60
.0

0
$

70
0.

00
$

16
,1

00
.0

0
$

69
4.

36
$

15
,9

70
.2

8
$

1,
95

3.
00

$
44

,9
19

.0
0

36
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

B
en

d,
6

In
ch

EA
46

$1
,0

80
.0

0
$

49
,6

80
.0

0
$

60
0.

00
$

27
,6

00
.0

0
$

59
1.

62
$

27
,2

14
.5

2
$

1,
84

9.
00

$
85

,0
54

.0
0

37
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

B
en

d,
4

In
ch

EA
16

$9
60

.0
0

$
15

,3
60

.0
0

$
50

0.
00

$
8,

00
0.

00
$

51
4.

40
$

8,
23

0.
40

$
1,

69
6.

00
$

27
,1

36
.0

0

38
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

C
ap

,
16

In
ch

EA
2

$1
,2

00
.0

0
$

2,
40

0.
00

$
90

0.
00

$
1,

80
0.

00
$

1,
16

1.
75

$
2,

32
3.

50
$

2,
30

0.
00

$
4,

60
0.

00

39
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

C
ap

,
6

In
ch

EA
1

$9
60

.0
0

$
96

0.
00

$
30

0.
00

$
30

0.
00

$
47

8.
65

$
47

8.
65

$
65

6.
00

$
65

6.
00

40
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

C
ap

,
4

In
ch

EA
2

$7
20

.0
0

$
1,

44
0.

00
$

25
0.

00
$

50
0.

00
$

44
8.

40
$

89
6.

80
$

62
5.

00
$

1,
25

0.
00

41
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

Pl
ug

,
12

In
ch

EA
1

$1
,2

00
.0

0
$

1,
20

0.
00

$
40

0.
00

$
40

0.
00

$
58

5.
35

$
58

5.
35

$
1,

09
9.

00
$

1,
09

9.
00

42
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

Pl
ug

,
10

In
ch

EA
1

$9
60

.0
0

$
96

0.
00

$
35

0.
00

$
35

0.
00

$
53

6.
95

$
53

6.
95

$
gg

g.
oo

$
99

9.
00

43
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

Pl
ug

,
8

In
ch

EA
4

$7
20

.0
0

$
2,

88
0.

00
$

30
0.

00
$

1,
20

0.
00

$
50

1.
76

$
2,

00
7.

04
$

67
5.

00
$

2,
70

0.
00

44
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

Pl
ug

,
6

In
ch

EA
5

$6
00

.0
0

$
3,

00
0.

00
$

25
0.

00
$

1,
25

0.
00

$
44

6.
31

$
2,

23
1.

55
$

73
3.

00
$

3,
66

5.
00

45
0

D
uc

til
e

Ir
on

Pi
pe

Pl
ug

,
4

In
ch

EA
1

$4
80

.0
0

$
48

0.
00

$
20

0.
00

$
20

0.
00

$
40

4.
95

$
40

4.
95

$
60

0.
00

$
60

0.
00

46
0

12
In

ch
F

os
te

r
A

da
pt

er
EA

2
$1

,2
00

.0
0

$
2,

40
0.

00
$

35
0.

00
$

70
0.

00
$

63
7.

60
$

1,
27

5.
20

$
1,

48
0.

00
$

2,
96

0.
00

47
0

8
In

ch
F

os
te

r
A

da
pt

er
EA

5
$9

60
.0

0
$

4,
80

0.
00

$
25

0.
00

$
1,

25
0.

00
$

52
1.

18
$

2,
60

5.
90

$
1,

38
0.

00
$

6,
90

0.
00

48
0

6
In

ch
F

os
te

r
A

da
pt

er
EA

10
$7

20
.0

0
$

7,
20

0.
00

$
20

0.
00

$
2,

00
0.

00
$

46
8.

62
$

4,
68

6.
20

$
1,

38
0.

00
$

13
,8

00
.0

0

49
0

4
In

ch
F

os
te

r
A

da
pt

er
EA

4
$4

80
.0

0
$

1,
92

0.
00

$
15

0.
00

$
60

0.
00

$
40

5.
00

$
1,

62
0.

00
$

1,
33

7.
00

$
5,

34
8.

00

50
0

6
In

ch
Fl

an
ge

A
da

pt
er

EA
5

$1
,2

00
.0

0
$

6,
00

0.
00

$
35

0.
00

$
1,

75
0.

00
$

61
6.

59
$

3,
08

2.
95

$
2,

50
0.

00
$

12
,5

00
.0

0

51
0

12
In

ch
Lo

ng
B

od
y

S
le

ev
e

EA
1

$9
60

.0
0

$
96

0.
00

$
1,

00
0.

00
$

1,
00

0.
00

$
1,

05
1.

75
$

1,
05

1.
75

$
2,

22
2.

00
$

2,
22

2.
00

52
0

10
In

ch
L

on
g

B
od

y
S

le
ev

e
EA

1
$7

20
.0

0
$

72
0.

00
$

80
0.

00
$

80
0.

00
$

86
8.

05
$

86
8.

05
$

2,
02

0.
00

$
2,

02
0.

00

53
0

8
In

ch
Lo

ng
B

od
y

Sl
ee

ve
EA

4
$6

00
.0

0
$

2,
40

0.
00

$
70

0.
00

$
2,

80
0.

00
$

69
5.

91
$

2,
78

3.
64

$
1,

77
7.

00
$

7,
10

8.
00

54
0

6
In

ch
Lo

ng
B

od
y

S
le

ev
e

EA
4

$4
80

.0
0

$
1,

92
0.

00
$

60
0.

00
$

2,
40

0.
00

$
60

6.
81

$
2,

42
7.

24
$

1,
71

7.
00

$
6,

86
8.

00

l,
/r

n
2
,2

3
(9

3
A

.M
)

S
D

B
\&

d
T

,,
,,
C

.W
D

H
W

Y

1919



C
ity

of
P

ho
en

ix
C

ha
rl

ot
te

A
nn

W
at

er
D

is
tr

ic
t

H
w

y
9

W
at

er
li

ne
R

el
oc

at
io

n

B
id

T
ab

ul
at

io
n

D
at

e:
1
0
/2

7
/2

0
2
3

55
0

4
In

ch
Lo

ng
B

od
y

S
le

ev
e

56
0

10
In

ch
Di

Sp
oo

l

EA

E
ng

in
ee

rs
E

st
im

at
e

U
ni

t
P

ri
ce

E
xt

en
de

d

A
pp

ar
en

t
L

ow

Pi
lo

t
R

oc
k

E
xc

av
at

io
n

In
c

U
ni

t
Pr

ic
e

E
xt

en
de

d

3

EA
1

$3
60

.0
0

$
1,

08
0.

00

$1
,2

00
.0

0
$

1,
20

0.
00

O
th

er
B

id
de

rs

N
or

th
co

re
U

SA
LL

C

U
ni

t
Pr

ic
e

E
xt

en
de

d

50
0.

00
$

1,
50

0.
00

$
60

0.
00

$
60

0.
00

$

C
en

tr
al

P
ip

el
in

e,
In

c.

U
ni

t
Pr

ic
e

E
xt

en
de

d

67
3.

35

$
52

9.
62

$
1,

58
8.

86
$

70
7.

00
$

2,
12

1.
00

$

57
0

T
ap

pi
ng

Sa
dd

le
,

24
In

ch
By

16
In

ch
EA

1
$3

,6
00

.0
0

$
3,

60
0.

00
$

20
,0

00
.0

0
$

20
,0

00
.0

0

58
0

T
ap

pi
ng

Sa
dd

le
,

10
In

ch
By

6
In

ch
EA

3
$3

,0
00

.0
0

$
9,

00
0.

00
$

5,
00

0.
00

$
15

,0
00

.0
0

59
0

T
ap

pi
ng

Sa
dd

le
,

8
In

ch
By

6
In

ch
EA

2
$2

,6
40

.0
0

$
5,

28
0.

00
$

5,
00

0.
00

$
10

,0
00

.0
0

60
0

N
ew

C
on

cr
et

e
V

au
lt

EA
3

$1
2,

00
0.

00
$

36
,0

00
.0

0
$

16
,0

00
.0

0
$

48
,0

00
.0

0

61
0

R
el

oc
at

ed
C

on
cr

et
e

V
au

lt
EA

1
$4

,8
00

.0
0

$
4,

80
0.

00
$

5,
50

0.
00

$
5,

50
0.

00

62
0

4
In

ch
N

ew
W

at
er

M
et

er
A

ss
em

bl
y

EA
1

$6
,0

00
.0

0
$

6,
00

0.
00

$
15

,0
00

.0
0

$
15

,0
00

.0
0

63
0

6
In

ch
R

el
oc

at
ed

W
at

er
M

et
er

A
ss

em
bl

y
EA

1
$2

,4
00

.0
0

$
2,

40
0.

00
$

7,
00

0.
00

$
7,

00
0.

00

64
0

4
In

ch
N

ew
B

ac
kf

lo
w

P
re

ve
nt

io
n

A
ss

em
bl

y
EA

1
$9

,6
00

.0
0

$
g,

60
0.

00
$

25
,0

00
.0

0
$

25
,0

00
.0

0

65
0

6
In

ch
R

el
oc

at
ed

B
ac

kf
lo

w
P

re
ve

nt
io

n
A

ss
em

bl
y

EA
1

$2
,4

00
.0

0
$

2,
40

0.
00

$
10

,0
00

.0
0

$
10

,0
00

.0
0

66
0

2
In

ch
A

ir
R

el
ea

se
/A

ir
V

ac
uu

m
V

al
ve

A
ss

em
bl

y
EA

3
$3

,0
00

.0
0

$
9,

00
0.

00
$

8,
00

0.
00

$
24

,0
00

.0
0

67
3.

35
$

7,
50

0.
00

$
7,

50
0.

00

$
12

,7
93

.1
5

$
12

,7
93

.1
5

$
23

,7
00

.0
0

$
23

,7
00

.0
0

$
1,

99
9.

22
$

5,
99

7.
66

$
4,

25
0.

00
$

12
,7

50
.0

0

67
0

16
In

ch
G

at
e

V
al

ve

$
1,

90
1.

50
$

3,
80

3.
00

$
3,

09
0.

00
$

6,
18

0.
00

EA
4

$9
,6

00
.0

0
$

38
,4

00
.0

0
$

14
,0

00
.0

0
$

56
,0

00
.0

0

68
0

12
In

ch
G

at
e

V
al

ve
EA

2
$7

,2
00

.0
0

$
14

,4
00

.0
0

69
0

8
In

ch
G

at
e

V
al

ve
EA

5
$4

,8
00

.0
0

$
24

,0
00

.0
0

70
0

6
In

ch
G

at
e

V
al

ve
[A

19
$2

,1
60

.0
0

$
41

,0
40

.0
0

71
0

4
In

ch
G

at
e

V
al

ve
EA

5
$1

,8
00

.0
0

$
9,

00
0.

00

72
0

H
yd

ra
nt

A
ss

em
bl

y
EA

12
$5

,4
00

.0
0

$
64

,8
00

.0
0

73
0

1
In

ch
W

at
er

Se
rv

ic
e

C
on

ne
ct

io
n

Pi
pi

ng
LF

14
33

$3
0.

00
$

42
,9

90
.0

0

74
0

2
In

ch
W

at
er

M
et

er
A

ss
em

bl
y

EA
2

$3
,0

00
.0

0
$

6,
00

0.
00

75
0

1-
1/

2
In

ch
W

at
er

M
et

er
A

ss
em

bl
y

EA
3

$2
,8

80
.0

0
$

8,
64

0.
00

$
6,

61
6.

41
$

19
,8

49
.2

3

$
3,

35
7.

54
$

3,
35

7.
54

$
7,

03
0.

25
$

7,
03

0.
25

$
10

,2
32

.8
2

$
10

,2
32

.8
2

$
6,

12
2.

75
$

6,
12

2.
75

$
9,

36
3.

82
$

9,
36

3.
82

$
5,

94
7.

85
$

17
,8

43
.5

5

$
14

,2
65

.2
3

$
57

,0
60

.9
2

$
6,

26
5.

75
$

12
,5

31
.5

0

$
2,

67
8.

65
$

13
,3

93
.2

5

$
1,

95
2.

36
$

37
,0

94
.8

4

$
1,

62
6.

39
$

8,
13

1.
95

$
11

,1
83

.9
6

$
13

4,
20

7.
52

$
18

0.
79

$
25

9,
07

2.
07

$
6,

03
8.

87
$

12
,0

77
.7

4

$
3,

46
1.

85
$

10
,3

85
.5

5

76
0

1
In

ch
W

at
er

M
et

er
A

ss
em

bl
y

$
16

,2
50

.0
0

$
48

,7
50

.0
0

$
12

,0
00

.0
0

$
12

,0
00

.0
0

$
1,

50
0.

00
$

1,
50

0.
00

$
1,

50
0.

00
$

1,
5D

0.
00

$
1,

50
0.

00
$

1,
50

0.
00

$
1,

50
0.

00
$

1,
50

0.
00

$
4,

07
0.

00
$

12
,2

10
.0

0

$
16

,2
50

.0
0

$
65

,0
00

.0
0

$
6,

56
5.

00
$

13
,1

30
.0

0

$
4,

28
0.

00
$

21
,4

00
.0

0

$
3,

88
8.

00
$

73
,8

72
.0

0

$
3,

36
0.

00
$

16
,8

00
.0

0

$
8,

38
3.

00
$

10
0,

59
6.

00

$
65

.0
0

$
93

,1
45

.0
0

$
4,

32
5.

00
$

8,
65

0.
00

$
4,

27
5.

00
$

12
,8

25
.0

0

$
5,

00
0.

00
$

10
,0

00
.0

0

$
3,

00
0.

00
$

15
,0

00
.0

0

$
2,

00
0.

00
$

38
,0

00
.0

0

$
1,

60
0.

00
$

8,
00

0.
00

$
8,

00
0.

00
$

96
,0

00
.0

0

$
25

.0
0

$
35

,8
25

.0
0

S
5,

00
0.

00
$

10
,0

00
.0

0

5
5,

00
0.

00
$

15
,0

00
.0

0

[A
5

77
0

3/
4

In
ch

W
at

er
M

et
er

A
ss

em
bl

y
EA

31

T
O

T
A

L
(I

T
E

M
S

10
T

O
77

0)

$2
,6

40
.0

0
$

13
,2

00
.0

0

$2
,4

00
.0

0
$

74
,4

00
.0

0

$
2,

20
0.

00
$

11
,0

00
.0

0

$
2
,1

2
4
,1

6
8
.0

0
-3

.2
%

$
2
,0

5
6
,3

6
5
.0

0

5
2,

20
0.

00
$

68
,2

00
.0

0
$

98
1.

25
$

30
,4

18
.7

5
$

2,
00

0.
00

$
62

,0
00

.0
0

91
4.

25
$

4,
57

1.
25

$
2,

10
0.

00
$

10
,5

00
.0

0

7.
4%

$
2,

28
1,

99
8.

88
2

2
.8

$
2,

60
9,

31
9.

00

H
W

’t

2020



City Council Meeting
Hybrid Meeting in Person and Via Zoom

Monday, October 16, 2023

1. CALL TO ORDER:
Mayor Baker called the City Council’s hybrid meeting to order on Monday, October 16,
2023, at 6:30 p.m.

ROLL CALL:
PRESENT: Terry Baker, Karen Shrader, Angie Vermillion, Scott

Clauson, Krista Peterson

STAFF PRESENT: Eric Swanson, City Manager
Bonnie Pickeff, City Recorder
Joe Slaughter, Deputy City Manager
Jeff Price, Lieutenant
Matias Mendez, PW Superintendent
Doug McGeary, City Attorney

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

3. PRESENTATION:
a. Doug McGeary — Discussion of Appointments to Council Swearing in of New City
Cou ncilors

City Attorney Doug McGeary briefly explained the rank selection process for the
candidates running for the open City Councilors seats. He advised this information was
kept and is a public record. Mr. McGeary noted that a motion was made and,
seconded, and voted on, there were no secret ballots for the individuals appointed to
the open seats. He stated the vote was considered and deliberate by the Council. Mr.
McGeary spoke about the difference between a potential conflict of interest and an
actual conflict of interest. He noted that a conflict of interest is a personal issue that the
individual should declare.

Councilor Peterson spoke about her tenant—landlord agreement with Jillian Shainholtz
and that her decision to vote for her was based on the fact that she felt Ms. Shainholtz
would be a good fit for the Council.

Bonnie Pickett, City Recorder, swore Ms. Jillian Shainholtz and Larry Dickson to the
City Council of Phoenix.

b. HMK — Government and Public Safety Center and Budget Update

City Council Meeting Minutes — October 16, 2023

2121



Richard Randleman, HMK, presented the monthly update on the Government and
Public Safety Center through September. He spoke about the upcoming water pressure
testing of the windows is upcoming.

David McKay, HMK, presented a detailed breakdown of the budget and finances of the
Government and Public Safety Center. He spoke about value engineering that has
been done to reduce the cost of the building. Mr. McKay spoke about the value of the
CMIGC process and the value of the project.

Mr. Swanson spoke about the loan for $3.5 million with a 50\50 split for repayment
through a lease agreement with Fire District No. 5. He noted that our portion of the loan
will be paid without decreasing services or increasing taxes or fees on the citizens of
Phoenix. 4

Mayor Baker spoke about how grateful for all the blessings that have occurred to make
the new Government Public Safety Center come to fruition. He spoke about all the past
attempts to make this project come to life. p
c. Barry Long, Caryn Wheeler Clay — Rogue Reimagined Regional Long-Term
Recovery Plan

Caryn Wheeler Clay spoke about how excited she is to be here to present the first in the
nation multijurisdictional disaster recovery plan to the Council.

Barry Long gave a high-level presentation of the disaster recovery plan to the Council.
He noted that the recovery plan is a milestone but is not complete until we have
completely recovered.

Ms. Wheeler-Clay spoke about the next steps in the recovery plan and projects. She
spoke about the reporting of the recovery projects. She requested the Council approve
or accept the long-term recovery plan.

“4 V

Mr. Swanson spoke about the loss that occurred during the Almeda fire. He spoke
about the upcoming Wildfire Summitt that he plans to attend at the end of the month.

4. PUBLIC COMMENT:
Tony Chaves, Phoenix, clarified that he has never been opposed to the Public Safety
Building; he has always been in support of it. His concern is about the impact it is having
on him. He noted his eyes are open daily; he has no other choice. Mr. Chavez read an
email from Mr. Randleman regarding the color of the building. He questioned why the
city would not consider changing the color of the building to have less of an impact on its
neighbors.

Chris Luz, Phoenix, states god bless our friends in Israel; things are tough over there. He
congratulated the new Councilors, speaking highly of Councilor Dickson and the language
Councilor Shainholtz used in her application. Mr. Luz suggested the Council not interact

City Council Meeting Minutes — October 16, 2023

2222



with the audience when they are making their public comments. He spoke about the last
PHURA meeting going off the rails during a presentation. He made suggestions on how
the meeting could be run better.

5. CONSENT AGENDA:
a. Reports for Information & Possible Action:

1. None

b. Minutes to Approve and File:
1. Minutes from City Council Meeting October 02, 2023.

Motion: I Move to Approve the Consent Agenda. MOVED BY PETERSON, SECONDED
BY CLAUSON.

ROLL CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS:
Ayes: Peterson, Clauson, Vermillion, Shrader, Dickson
Abstain: Shainholtz
MOTION APPROVED WITH FIVE AYES

6. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS PULLED FOR DISCUSSION:

7. NEW BUSINESS
a. Resolution No. 1116 — A Resolution Requesting Surrender by Jackson County to the
City of Phoenix All Right, Title, Interest, Jurisdiction, Maintenance, and Control of All
Subject Roadway Sections to the City

Mr. Swanson introduced the topic of Resolution No. 1116 to the Council.

Mr. Slaughter summarized the details of the Resolution for the Council.

Motion: I Move to Approve Resolution 1116 Requesting Surrender by Jackson County to
the City of Phoenix All Right, Title, Interest, Jurisdiction, Maintenance, and Control of all
Subiect Roadway Sections to the City. MOVED BY PETERSON, SECONDED BY
VERMILLION.

ROLL CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS:
Ayes: Peterson, Vermillion, Dickson, Clauson, Shrader, Shainholtz
MOTION APPROVED WITH SIX AYES

8. ORDINANCE: READING I ADOPTION:

9. STAFF REPORT:
a. City Manager Eric Swanson noted that we need volunteers for the Phoenix High
School Parade on October 25 at 5:00 p.m. He advised the Christmas Tree Lighting this
year will be December 02, 2023, from 5:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. Mr. Swanson spoke about
being invited to be a guest speaker at the League of Oregon Cities Conference to discuss

City Council Meeting Minutes — October 16, 2023

2323



Phoenix’s Urban Growth Boundary Expansion. He spoke about walking the new
Councilors through the new Councilor Orientation. Mr. Swanson introduced Mr. Slaughter
with his new title of Deputy City Manager.

b. Deputy City Manager Joe Slaughter noted the Planning Commission voted to
recommend to Council approval of a development code amendment to add an exclusive
agriculture overlay to the development code, which is due in part to the annexation of the
PH5 area into Phoenix. He spoke about a new application the Planning Department has
received for a Dollar General located at the corner of Rose and Hwy 99.

c. City Attorney Doug McGeary congratulated the new Councilors, advising he is
available to answer questions if they have any regarding what they should and shouldn’t
do.

10. MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENT! REPORTS:
Councilor Dickson stated that it is a privilege to join the Council. He thanked the Council
for their support. Councilor Dickson stated that he supports the new Government and
Public Safety Center, noting it will be a good thing for the whole population of Phoenix.

Councilor Shrader welcomed the two new Councilors, noting how happy she is that they
have a full Council again. She mentioned that last week was fire awareness week and
that she attended an annual event at Fi?e District No. 5.

Councilor Vermillion spoke about feeling blessed in Phoenix and the County. She spoke
about looking forward to watching the Parade instead of being in it like she was in the
past with former Councilor Jim Snyder.

Councilor Peterson welcomed the two new Councilors to the Council. She noted that she
feels supported by the Council and Phoenix staff. Councilor Peterson expressed her
excitement about the Public Safety Building, noting that it would be great to have the Fire
Department back in town. She stated she likes seeing the city moving forward and would
like it to continue into next year.

Councilor Clauson welcomed the new Councilors to the Council. He noted that he is
thankful for Eric and the staff being able to put together the new Public Safety building.
Councilor Clauson noted that with inflation, the cost of the building could cost a great deal
more in the future.

Councilor Shainholtz thanked the Council for welcoming her to the Council. She noted
that she is excited to learn about things happening and looks forward to helping her
community.

Mayor Baker stated he was excited to have Councilor Dickson on the Council, with all his
institutional knowledge. He noted that he was glad to have Councilor Shainholtz on the
Council because she works at the school district. Mayor Baker spoke about the diversity
of the members of the Council. He spoke about attending the League of Oregon Cities

City Council Meeting Minutes — October 16, 2023

2424



Conference, where he could speak with other city officials to see how they are dealing
with issues in their cities. He spoke about observing Mr. Swanson at the LOC Conference
in his element and how well he represented the City of Phoenix.

11. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m.

Respectfully submitted by,

Bonnie Pickett
City Recorder

City Council Meeting Minutes — October 16, 2023

2525



Agenda Item #: 7a.

Meeting Date: November 6, 2023

From: Denise Wood man, Contract Finance Director

Action: Motion, Ordinance, only, Other

SUMMARY
Authorize the City Manager (the “Authorized Officer”) to execute on behalf of the City of Phoenix
the Financing Contract and such other documents as may be required to obtain financial assistance
(the “Financing Documents”), including a loan from the OBDD, on such terms as may be agreed
upon between the Authorized Officer and OBDD, on the condition that the principal amount of the
loan from the OBDD to the Recipient is not in excess of $3,500,000 and an interest rate of 4.02%
per annum. The proceeds of the loan from the OBDD will be applied solely to the “Cost of the
Project” as such term is defined in the Financing Contract.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION
The city of Phoenix has been looking at developing a combined facility that would house all the
emergency services as well as city hail for a number of years. Since the fire it has given the City the
opportunity to design and construction a Government and Public Safety Center. The building will
be approximately 21,600 square feet, which will consist of two stories. The first floor will be
comprised of the police station, emergency operations center and fire bays, the second floor will be
city hall and the fire department living quarters. The City has already completed architectural design
and has begun construction of the building. Due to rising construction costs, this loan is needed to
complete the project. The total Project cost is estimated at $16,865,910. The City has received
grant funding of $13,365,910 from Oregon House Bill 5006, Oregon House Bill 5202 and FEMA
Public Assistance. The City’s application to Business Oregon and the Infrastructure Financing
Authority for a Special Public Works Fund (SPWF) loan to be used to complete the GaPSC was
accepted at the IFA Board meeting on October 6, 2023.

FISCAL IMPACT
The City plans to finance $3.5 million for a 30-year term at a rate of 4.02% per anium to fund the
shortfall in construction funding for the Government and Public Safety Center building and see the
project to completion. The repayment of this loan will come from the City’s General Fund, which
consists of Taxes, User Fees and Charges for Services. The City will see increased revenue from
the annexation of approximately 500 acres over the next three years. In addition, 50% of the loan is
to be covered through a new Lease Agreement with Jackson County Fire District No 5. for use of
the building being constructed with the loan proceeds. Repayment of the loan will begin in fiscal
year 2024-25 and will be budgeted accordingly.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of resolution number 1118, “A resolution of the City of Phoenix
authorizing a loan from the Special Public Works Fund by entering into a financing contract with

Agenda Report
City of Phoenix to Mayor and Council
Heart of the Rogue Valley

Agenda item title: Government and Public Safety Center Construction Loan

City Council Agenda Report

2626



the Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority” and authorizing the City Manager to execute the
Financing Documents on behalf of the City of Phoenix.

PROPOSED MOTION
“I move approval of Resolution No. 1118 for the Special Public Works Fund Development Project
Financing Contract and authorize the City Manager to sign the Financing Documents on behalf of
the City of Phoenix.

ATTACHMENTS
SPECIAL PUBLIC WORKS FUND DEVELOPMENT PROJECT FINANCING CONTRACT
Resolution No. 1118

City Council Agenda Report

2727



CITYOF PHOENIX
PHOENIX, OREGON

RESOLUTION NO. 1118

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PHOENIX AUTHORIZING A LOAN
FROM THE SPECIAL PUBLIC WORKS FUND BY ENTERING INTO A

FINANCING CONTRACT WITH THE OREGON INFRASTRUCTURE
FINANCE AUTHORITY

The City Council (the “Governing Body”) of the City of Phoenix (the “Recipient”) finds:

A. The Recipient is a “municipality” within the meaning of Oregon Revised Statutes
285B.41 0(9).

B. Oregon Revised Statutes 285B.410 through 285B.482 (the “Act”) authorize any
municipality to file an application with the Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority of the
Business Development Department (“OBDD”) to obtain financial assistance from the
Special Public Works Fund.

C. The Recipient has filed an application with the OBDD to obtain financial assistance for
a “development project” within the meaning of the Act.

D. The OBDD has approved the Recipient’s application for financial assistance from the
Special Public Works Fund pursuant to the Act.

E. The Recipient is required, as a prerequisite to the receipt of financial assistance from
the OBDD, to enter into a Financing Contract with the OBDD, number L24002, substantially
in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 1. The project is described in Exhibit C to that
Financing Contract (the “Project”).

F. Notice relating to the Recipient’s consideration of the adoption of this Resolution No.
1118 was published in full accordance with the Recipient’s charter and laws for public
notification.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body of the Recipient as
follows:

1. Financing Loan Authorized. The Governing Body authorizes the City Manager (the
“Authorized Officer”) to execute on behalf of Recipient the Financing Contract and such
other documents as may be required to obtain financial assistance (the “Financing
Documents”), including a loan from the OBDD, on such terms as may be agreed upon
between the Authorized Officer and OBDD, on the condition that the principal amount of
the loan from the OBDD to the Recipient is not in excess of $3,500,000 and an interest rate

2828



of 4.02% per annum. The proceeds of the loan from the OBDD will be applied solely to the
“Costs of the Project” as such term is defined in the Financing Contract.

2. Sources of Repayment. Amounts payable by the Recipient are payable from the sources
described in section 4 of the Financing Contract and the Oregon Revised Statutes
Section 285B.437(3) which include:

(a) The revenues of the project, including special assessment revenues;
(b) Amounts withheld under ORS 285B.449 (1);
(c) The general fund of the Recipient; or
(d) Any other source.

3. Tax-Exempt Status. The Recipient covenants not to take any action or omit to take any
action if the taking or omission would cause interest paid by the Recipient pursuant to the
Financing Documents not to qualify for the exclusion from gross income provided by
Section 103(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The Recipient may
enter into covenants to protect the tax-exempt status of the interest paid by the Recipient
pursuant to the Financing Documents and may execute any Tax Certificate, Internal
Revenue Service forms or other documents as may be required by the OBDD or its bond
counsel to protect the tax-exempt status of such interest.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Phoenix, Oregon on the 06th
day of November 2023, and signed in authentication thereof.

Terry Baker, Mayor

ATTEST:

Bonnie Pickeff, City Recorder

2929



SPECIAL PUBLIC WoRKs FUND DEVELOPMENT PROJECT

FINANCING CONTRACT

Project Name: Government and Public Safety Center

Project Number: L24002

This financing contract (“Contract”), dated as of the date the Contract is fully executed, is made by the
State of Oregon, acting by and through its Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority of the Oregon
Business Development Department (“OBDD”), and the City of Pheonix, Oregon (“Recipient”) for
financing of the project referred to above and described in Exhibit C (“Project”). This Contract becomes
effective only when fully signed and approved as required by applicable law. Capitalized terms not
defined in section 1 and elsewhere in the body of the Contract have the meanings assigned to them by
Exhibit A.

This Contract includes the following exhibits, listed in descending order of precedence for purposes of
resolving any conflict between two or more of the parts:

Exhibit A General Definitions
Exhibit B Security
Exhibit C Project Description
Exhibit D Project Budget

SECTION 1 - KEY TERMS

The following capitalized terms have the meanings assigned below.

“Estimated Project Cost” means $16,865,910.

“Interest Rate” means 4.02% per annum.

“Loan Amount” means $3,500,000.

“Maturity Date” means the 29th anniversary of the Repayment Commencement Date.

“Payment Date” means December 1.

“Project Closeout Deadline” means 90 days after the earlier of the Project Completion Date or the
Project Completion Deadline.

“Project Completion Deadline” means 36 months after the date of this Contract.

“Repayment Commencement Date” means the first Payment Date to occur after the Project Closeout
Deadline.

SEcTIoN 2 - FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

OBDD shall provide Recipient, and Recipient shall accept from OBDD, financing for the Project as a
non-revolving loan (the “Loan”) in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed the Loan Amount.

Notwithstanding the above, the aggregate total of Financing Proceeds disbursed under this
Contract cannot exceed the Costs of the Project.

SECTION 3 - DISBURSEMENTS

A. Reimbursement Basis. The Financing Proceeds will be disbursed to Recipient on an expense
reimbursement or costs-incurred basis. Recipient must submit each disbursement request for the

L24002_Phoenix_Contract.docx Page 1 of 1 7

3030



Financing Proceeds on an OBDD-provided or OBDD-approved disbursement request form
(‘Disbursement Request”). A copy of the executed lease agreement between Recipient and the
Jackson County Fire District Number 5 must be submitted to OBDD prior to the disbursement of
Financing Proceeds.

B. Financing Availability. OBDD’s obligation to make, and Recipient’s right to request, disbursements
under this Contract terminates on the Project Closeout Deadline.

C. Payment to Contractors. OBDD, in its sole discretion, may make direct payment to suppliers,
contractors and subcontractors and others for sums due them in connection with construction of the
Project, instead of reimbursing Recipient for those sums.

SECTION 4 - LOAN PAYMENT; PREPAYMENT 1
Promise to Pay. Recipient shall repay the Loan and all amounts due under this Contract in accordance

with its terms. Payments required under this Contract are, without limitation, payable from the
sources of repayment described in the Act and this Contract, including but not limited to Exhibit B,
and the obligation of Recipient to make all payments is absolute and unconditional. Payments will
not be abated, rebated, set-off, reduced, abrogated, terminated, waived, postponed or otherwise
modified in any manner whatsoever. Payments cannot remain unpaid, regardless of any contingency,
act of God, event or cause whatsoever, including (without limitation) any acts or circumstances that
may constitute failure of consideration, eviction or constructive eviction, the taking by eminent
domain or destruction of or damage to the Project, commercial frustration of purpose, any change in
the laws, rules or regulations of the United States of America or of the State of Oregon or any
political subdivision or governmental authority, nor any failure of OBDD to perform any agreement,
whether express or implied, or any duty, liability, or obligation arising out of or connected with the
Project or this Contract, or any rights of set off, recoupment, abatement or counterclaim that
Recipient might otherwise have against OBDD or any other party or parties; provided further, that
payments hereunder will not constitute a waiver of any such rights.

B. Interest. Interest accrues at the Interest Rate on each disbursement from the date of disbursement
until the Loan is fully paid. All unpaid interest accrued to the Repayment Commencement Date is (in
addition to the first regular installment payment due) payable on the Repayment Commencement
Date. Interest is computed by counting the actual days occurring in a 360-day year.

Recipient authorizes OBDD to calculate accrued interest as necessary under this Contract, including
for purposes of determining a loan amortization schedule or determining the amount of a loan
prepayment or loan payoff. Absent manifest error, such calculations will be conclusive.

C. Loan Payments. Starting on the Repayment Commencement Date and then on each succeeding
Payment Date, Recipient shall make level installment payments of principal and interest, each
payment sufficient to pay the interest accrued to the date of payment and so much of the principal as
will fully amortize the Loan by the Maturity Date, on which date the entire outstanding balance of
the Loan is due and payable in full.

D. Loan Prepayments.

(1) Mandatory Prepayment. Recipient shall prepay all or part of the outstanding balance of the
Loan as required by this Contract.

(2) Optional Prepayment. Recipient may prepay all or part of the outstanding balance of the Loan
on any day except a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or day that banking institutions in Salem,
Oregon are closed.

L24002_Phoenix_Contract.docx Page 2 of 1 7

3131



E. Application of Payments. Regardless of any designation by Recipient, payments and prepayments by
Recipient under this Contract or any of the Financing Documents will be applied first to any
expenses of OBDD, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, then to unpaid accrued interest (in
the case of prepayment, on the amount prepaid), then to the principal of the Loan. In the case of a
Loan prepayment that does not prepay all the principal of the Loan, OBDD will determine, in its sole
discretion, the method for how the Loan prepayment will be applied to the outstanding principal
payments. A scheduled payment received before the scheduled repayment date will be applied to
interest and principal on the scheduled repayment date, rather than on the day such payment is
received.

SECTION 5 - CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

A. Conditions Precedent to OBDD’s Obligations. OBDD’s obligations are subject to the receipt of the
following items, in form and substance satisfactory to OBDD and its Counsel:

(1) This Contract duly signed by an authorized officer of Recipient.

(2) A copy of the ordinance, order or resolution of the governing body of Recipient authorizing the
borrowing and the contemplated transactions and the execution and delivery of this Contract
and the other Financing Documents.

(3) An opinion of Recipient’s Counsel.

(4) A copy of the executed lease agreement between Recipient and Jackson County Fire District
Number 5 for use of the building located at 112 W. Second Street, Pheonix, Oregon.

(5) Such other certificates, documents, opinions and information as OBDD may reasonably
require.

B. Conditions to Disbursements. As to any disbursement, OBDD has no obligation to disburse funds
unless all following conditions are met:

(1) There is no Event of Default.

(2) The representations and warranties made in this Contract are true and correct on the date of
disbursement as if made on such date.

(3) OBDD, in the reasonable exercise of its administrative discretion, has sufficient moneys in the
Special Public Works Fund for use in the Project and has sufficient funding, appropriations,
limitations, allotments and other expenditure authority to make the disbursement.

(4) OBDD (a) has received a completed Disbursement Request, (b) has received any written
evidence of materials and labor furnished to or work performed upon the Project, itemized
receipts or invoices for payment, and releases, satisfactions or other signed statements or forms
as OBDD may require, (c) is satisfied that all items listed in the Disbursement Request are
reasonable and that the costs for labor and materials were incurred and are properly included in
the Costs of the Project, and (d) has determined that the disbursement is only for costs defined
as eligible costs under the Act and any implementing administrative rules and policies.

(5) Recipient has delivered documentation satisfactory to OBDD that, in addition to the Financing
Proceeds, Recipient has available or has obtained binding commitments for all funds necessary
to complete the Project.

(6) Recipient has delivered to OBDD (in form and substance satisfactory to OBDD) an estimated
schedule of Disbursement Requests, including anticipated number, submission dates and
amounts.

L24002_Phoenix_Contract.docx Page 3 of 1 7

3232



(7) Any conditions to disbursement elsewhere in this Contract or in the other Financing
Documents are met.

SECTION 6 - USE OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

A. Use of Proceeds. Recipient shall use the Financing Proceeds only for the activities described in
Exhibit C and according to the budget in Exhibit D. Recipient may not transfer Financing Proceeds
among line items in the budget without the prior written consent of OBDD.

B. Costs of the Project. Recipient shall apply the Financing Proceeds to the Costs of the Project in
accordance with the Act and Oregon law, as applicable. Financing Proceeds cannot be used for costs
in excess of one hundred percent (100%) of the total Costs of the Project and cannot be used for pre
Award Costs of the Project, unless permitted by Exhibit C.

C. Costs Paid for by Others. Recipient may not use any of the Financing Proceeds to cover costs to be
paid for by other financing for the Project, whether from OBDD or from another State of Oregon
agency or any third party.

SECTION 7 - REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIEs OF RECIPIENT

Recipient represents and warrants to OBDD:

A. Estimated Project Cost, Funds for Repayment. A reasonable estimate of the Costs of the Project is
shown in section 1, and the Project is fully funded. Recipient will have adequate funds available to
repay the Loan, and the Maturity Date does not exceed the usable life of the Project.

B. Organization and Authority.

(1) Recipient is a Municipality under the Act, and validly organized and existing under the laws of
the State of Oregon.

(2) Recipient has all necessary right, power and authority under its organizational documents and
under Oregon law to (a) execute and deliver this Contract and the other Financing Documents,
(b) incur and perform its obligations under this Contract and the other Financing Documents,
and (c) borrow and receive financing for the Project.

(3) This Contract and the other Financing Documents executed and delivered by Recipient have
been authorized by an ordinance, order or resolution of Recipient’s governing body, and voter
approval, if necessary, that was adopted in accordance with applicable law and requirements
for filing public notices and holding public meetings.

(4) This Contract and the other Financing Documents have been duly executed by Recipient, and
when executed by OBDD, are legal, valid and binding, and enforceable in accordance with
their terms.

C. Full Disclosure. Recipient has disclosed in writing to OBDD all facts that materially adversely affect
the Project, or the ability of Recipient to make all payments and perform all obligations required by
this Contract and the other Financing Documents. Recipient has made no false statements of fact,
nor has it omitted information necessary to prevent any statements from being misleading. The
information contained in this Contract and the other Financing Documents is true and accurate in all
respects.

D. Pending Litigation. Recipient has disclosed in writing to OBDD all proceedings pending (or to the
knowledge of Recipient, threatened) against or affecting Recipient, in any court or before any
governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal, that, if adversely determined, would

L24002_Phoenix_Contract.docx Page 4 of 1 7

3333



materially adversely affect the Project or the ability of Recipient to make all payments and perform
all obligations required by this Contract and the other Financing Documents.

E. No Events of Default.

(1) No Events of Default exist or occur upon authorization, execution or delivery of this Contract
or any of the Financing Documents.

(2) Recipient has not violated, and has not received notice of any claimed violation of, any
agreement or instrument to which it is a party or by which the Project or its property may be
bound, that would materially adversely affect the Project or the ability of Recipient to make all
payments and perform all obligations required by this Contract and the other Financing
Documents.

F. Compliance with Existing Agreements and Applicable Law. The authorization and execution of, and
the performance of all obligations required by, this Contract and the other Financing Documents will
not: (i) cause a breach of any agreement, indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, or other instrument, to
which Recipient is a party or by which the Project or any of its property or assets may be bound; (ii)
cause the creation or imposition of any third party lien, charge or encumbrance upon any property or
asset of Recipient; (iii) violate any provision of the charter or other document pursuant to which
Recipient was organized or established; or (iv) violate any laws, regulations, ordinances, resolutions,
or court orders related to Recipient, the Project or its properties or operations.

G. Governmental Consent. Recipient has obtained or will obtain all permits and approvals, and has
made or will make all notifications, declarations, filings or registrations, required for the making and
performance of its obligations under this Contract and the other Financing Documents, for the
financing or refinancing and undertaking and completion of the Project.

SECTION 8 - COVENANTS OF RECIPIENT

Recipient covenants as follows:

A. Notice of Adverse Change. Recipient shall promptly notify OBDD of any adverse change in the
activities, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of Recipient or the Project related to the
ability of Recipient to make all payments and perform all obligations required by this Contract or the
other Financing Documents.

B. Compliance with Laws. Recipient shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and
orders of any court or governmental authority that relate to this Contract or the other Financing
Documents, that relate to the Project. In particular, but without limitation, Recipient shall comply
with the following, as applicable:

(I) State procurement regulations found in the Oregon Public Contracting Code, ORS chapters
279A, 279B and 279C.

(2) State labor standards and wage rates found in ORS chapter 279C.

(3) OAR 123-042-0165 (5) requirements for signs and notifications.

These laws, rules, regulations and orders are incorporated by reference in this Contract to the extent
required by law.

C. Project Completion Obligations. Recipient shall:

(1) When procuring professional consulting services, provide OBDD with copies of all
solicitations at least 10 days before advertising, and all contracts at least 10 days before
signing.

L24002_Phoenix_Contract.docx Page 5 of 1 7

3434



(2) Provide OBDD with copies of all plans and specifications relating to the Project, and a timeline
for the bidding/award process, at least ten (10) days before advertising for bids.

(3) Provide a copy of the bid tabulation, notice of award, and contract to OBDD within ten (10)
days after selecting a construction contractor.

(4) Permit OBDD to conduct inspection of the Project at any time.

(5) Complete the Project using its own fiscal resources or money from other sources to pay for any
Costs of the Project in excess of the total amount of financial assistance provided pursuant to
this Contract.

(6) Complete the Project no later than the Project Completion Deadline, unless otherwise
permitted by OBDD in writing.

(7) Obtain and maintain as-built drawings for all facilities constructed as part of the Project.

D. Ownership of Project. During the term of the Loan, the Project is and will continue to be owned by
Recipient. The Project will be operated by Recipient or by a person under a management contract or
operating agreement with Recipient. Any such management contract or operating agreement will be
structured as a “qualified management contract” as described in IRS Revenue Procedure 97-13, as
amended or supplemented.

E. Operation and Maintenance of the Project. Recipient shall operate and maintain the Project in good
repair and operating condition so as to preserve the long-term public benefits of the Project,
including making all necessary and proper repairs, replacements, additions, and improvements
during term of the Loan. On or before the Project Closeout Deadline, Recipient shall adopt a plan
acceptable to OBDD for the on-going operation and maintenance of the Project without reliance on
OBDD financing and furnish OBDD, at its request, with evidence of such adoption. The plan must
include measures for generating revenues sufficient to assure the operation and maintenance of the
Project during the usable life of the Project.

F. Insurance, Damage. Recipient shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, insurance policies with
responsible insurers or self-insurance programs, insuring against liability and risk of direct physical
loss, damage or destruction of the Project, at least to the extent that similar insurance is customarily
carried by governmental units constructing, operating and maintaining similar facilities. Nothing in
this provision precludes Recipient from asserting a defense against any party other than OBDD,
including a defense of immunity. If the Project or any portion is destroyed, any insurance proceeds
will be paid to OBDD and applied to prepay the outstanding balance on the Loan in accordance with
section 4.D.(1), unless OBDD agrees in writing that the insurance proceeds may be used to rebuild
the Project.

G. Sales, Leases and Encumbrances. Except as specifically described in Exhibit C, Recipient shall not
sell, lease, exchange, abandon, transfer or otherwise dispose of any substantial portion of or interest
in the Project or any lease revenue that provides revenues for payment or is security for the Loan,
unless worn out, obsolete, or, in the reasonable business judgment of Recipient, no longer useful in
the operation of the Project. Nevertheless, OBDD may consent to such disposition if it has received
90 days’ prior written notice from Recipient. Such consent may require assumption by transferee of
all of Recipient’s obligations under the Financing Documents and payment of OBDD’s costs related
to such assumption, and receipt by OBDD of an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that such
disposition complies with applicable law and will not adversely affect the exclusion of interest on
any Lottery Bonds from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation under Section 103(a)
of the Code. The term “Bond Counsel” means a law firm determined by OBDD to have knowledge
and expertise in the field of municipal law and whose opinions are generally accepted by purchasers

L24002_Phoenix_Contract.docx Page 6 of 1 7

3535



of municipal bonds. In the case of sale, exchange, transfer or other similar disposition, Recipient
shall, within 30 days of receipt of any proceeds from such disposition, prepay the entire outstanding
balance on the Loan in accordance with section 4.D.(1), unless OBDD agrees otherwise in writing. If
Recipient abandons the Project, Recipient shall prepay the entire outstanding balance of the Loan
immediately upon demand by OBDD.

H. Condemnation Proceeds. If the Project or any portion is condemned, any condemnation proceeds
will be paid to OBDD and applied to prepay the outstanding balance of the Loan in accordance with
section 4.D.(l).

I. Financial Records. Recipient shall keep accurate books and records for the revenues and funds that
are the source of repayment of the Loan, separate and distinct from its other books and records, and
maintain them according to generally accepted accounting principles established by the Government
Accounting Standards Board in effect at the time. Recipient shall have these records audited
annually by an independent certified public accountant, which may be part of the annual audit of all
records of Recipient.

J. Inspections; Information. Recipient shall permit OBDD and any party designated by OBDD: (i) to
inspect, at any reasonable time, the property, if any, constituting the Project; and (ii) at any
reasonable time, to inspect and make copies of any accounts, books and records, including, without
limitation, its records regarding receipts, disbursements, contracts, investments and any other related
matters, and financial statements or other documents related to its financial standing. Recipient shall
supply any related reports and information as OBDD may reasonably require. In addition, Recipient
shall, upon request, provide OBDD with copies of loan documents or other financing documents and
any official statements or other forms of offering prospectus relating to any other bonds, notes or
other indebtedness of Recipient that are issued after the date of this Contract.

K. Records Maintenance. Recipient shall retain and keep accessible all books, documents, papers, and
records that are directly related to this Contract, the Project or the Financing Proceeds for a
minimum of six years, or such longer period as may be required by other provisions of this Contract
or applicable law, following the Project Closeout Deadline. If there are unresolved issues at the end
of such period, Recipient shall retain the books, documents, papers and records until the issues are
resolved.

L. Economic Benefit Data. OBDD may require Recipient to submit specific data on the economic
development benefits of the Project and other information to evaluate the success and economic
impact of the Project, from the date of this Contract until six years after the Project Completion
Date. Recipient shall, at its own expense, prepare and submit the data within the time specified by
OBDD.

M. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises. ORS 200.090 requires all public agencies to “aggressively
pursue a policy of providing opportunities for disadvantaged business enterprises, minority-owned
businesses, woman-owned businesses, businesses that service-disabled veterans own and emerging
small businesses...” OBDD encourages Recipient in any contracting activity to follow good faith
efforts as described in ORS 200.045, available at
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/billslaws/ors/ors200.html. Additional resources are provided by
the Governor’s Policy Advisor for Economic and Business Equity. Also, the Certification Office for
Business Inclusion and Diversity at the Oregon Business Development Department maintains a list
of certified firms and can answer questions. Search for certified MWESB firms on the web at:
https ://oregon4biz.diversitysoftware.com/FrontEnd/SearchCertifiedDirectory.asp?XID=23 I 5&TN=o
regon4biz

L24002_Phoenix_Coritract.docx Page 7 of 1 7

3636



N. Professional Responsibility. A professional engineer or architect, as applicable, registered and in
good standing in Oregon, will be responsible for the design and construction of the Project. All
service providers retained for their professional expertise must be certified, licensed, or registered, as
appropriate, in the State of Oregon for their specialty. Recipient shall follow standard construction
practices, such as bonding requirements for construction contractors, requiring errors and omissions
insurance, and performing testing and inspections during construction.

0. Notice of Event of Default. Recipient shall give OBDD prompt written notice of any Event of
Default, or any circumstance that with notice or the lapse of time, or both, may become an Event of
Default, as soon as Recipient becomes aware of its existence or reasonably believes an Event of
Default is likely.

P. Contributory Liability and Contractor Indemnification.

(1) If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding alleging a tort as
now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 (“Third Party Claim”) against a party (the “Notified
Party”) with respect to which the other party may have liability, the Notified Party must
promptly notify the other party in writing and deliver a copy of the claim, process, and all legal
pleadings related to the Third Party Claim. Either party is entitled to participate in the defense
of a Third Party Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing.
The foregoing provisions are conditions precedent for either party’s liability to the other in
regard to the Third Party Claim.

If the parties are jointly liable (or would be ifjoined in the Third Party Claim), the parties shall
contribute to the amount of expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts
paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable in such proportion as is
appropriate to reflect their respective relative fault. The relative fault of the parties shall be
determined by reference to, among other things, the parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access
to information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. Each party’s contribution amount in any
instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law if that party
had sole liability in the proceeding. This Section shall survive termination of this Contract.

(2) Recipient shall take all reasonable steps to require its contractor(s) that are not units of local
government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless
the State of Oregon and its officers, employees and agents (“Indemnitee”) from and against any
and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including attorneys’ fees)
arising from a tort (as now or hereafter defined in ORS 3 0.260) caused, or alleged to be caused,
in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of Recipient’s contractor or
any of the officers, agents, employees or subcontractors of the contractor (“Claims”). It is the
specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims
arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified
by the contractor from and against any and all Claims. This Section shall survive termination
of this Contract.

Q. Further Assurances. Recipient shall, at the request of OBDD, authorize, sign, acknowledge and
deliver any further resolutions, conveyances, transfers, assurances, financing statements and other
instruments and documents as may be necessary or desirable for better assuring, conveying, granting,
assigning and confirming the rights, security interests and agreements granted or intended to be granted
by this Contract and the other Financing Documents.

L24002_Phoenix_Contract.docx Page 8 of 1 7

3737



R. Exclusion of Interest from Federal Gross Income and Compliance with Code.

(I) Recipient shall not take any action or omit to take any action that would result in the loss of the
exclusion of the interest on any Lottery Bonds from gross income for purposes of federal
income taxation, as governed by Section 103(a) of the Code. OBDD may decline to disburse
the Financing Proceeds if it finds that the federal tax exemption of the Lottery Bonds cannot be
assured.

(2) Recipient shall not take any action (including but not limited to the execution of a management
agreement for the operation of the Project) or omit to take any action that would cause any
Lottery Bonds to be “private activity bonds” within the meaning of Section 141(a) of the Code.
Accordingly, unless Recipient receives the prior written approval of OBDD, Recipient shall
not permit in excess of ten percent (10%) of either (a) the Financing Proceeds or (b) the Project
financed or refinanced with the Financing Proceeds to be directly or indirectly used in any
manner that would constitute “private business use” within the meaning of Section 141 (b)(6)
of the Code, including not permitting more than one half of any permitted private business use
to be “disproportionate related business use” or private business use unrelated to the
government use of the Financing Proceeds. Unless Recipient receives the prior written
approval of OBDD, Recipient shall not directly or indirectly use any of the Financing Proceeds
to make or finance loans to persons other than governmental units, as that term is used in
Section 14 1(c) of the Code.

(3) Recipient shall not directly or indirectly use or permit the use of any of the Financing Proceeds
or any other funds, or take any action or omit to take any action, which would cause any
Lottery Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section 148(a) of the Code.

(4) Recipient shall not cause any Lottery Bonds to be treated as “federally guaranteed” for
purposes of Section 149(b) of the Code, as may be modified in any applicable rules, rulings,
policies, procedures, regulations or other official statements promulgated or proposed by the
Department of the Treasury or the Internal Revenue Service with respect to “federally
guaranteed” obligations described in Section 149(b) of the Code. For purposes of this
paragraph, any Lottery Bonds will be treated as “federally guaranteed” if: (a) all or any portion
of the principal or interest is or will be guaranteed directly or indirectly by the United States of
America or any agency or instrumentality thereof or (b) five percent (5%) or more of the
proceeds of the Lottery Bonds will be (i) used in making loans if the payment of principal or
interest is guaranteed in whole or in part by the United States of America or any agency or
instrumentality thereof, or (ii) invested directly or indirectly in federally insured deposits or
accounts, and (c) none of the exceptions described in Section 149(b)(3) of the Code apply.

(5) Recipient shall assist OBDD to ensure that all required amounts are rebated to the United
States of America pursuant to Section 148(f) of the Code. Recipient shall pay to OBDD such
amounts as may be directed by OBDD to satisfy the requirements of Section 148(f) applicable
to the portion of the proceeds of any tax-exempt bonds, including any Financing Proceeds or
other amounts held in a reserve fund. Recipient further shall reimburse OBDD for the portion
of any expenses it incurs related to the Project that is necessary to satisfy the requirements of
Section 148(f) of the Code.

(6) Upon OBDD’s request, Recipient shall furnish written information regarding its investments
and use of Financing Proceeds, and of any facilities financed or refinanced therewith, including
providing OBDD with any information and documentation that OBDD reasonably determines
is necessary to comply with the arbitrage and private use restrictions that apply to the Lottery
Bonds.

L24002 Phoenix Contract.docx Page 9 of 1 7

3838



(7) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, so long as is necessary to maintain the exclusion
from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation of interest on any Lottery Bonds,
the covenants contained in this subsection will survive the payment of the Loan and the Lottery
Bonds, and the interest thereon, including the application of any unexpended Financing
Proceeds. Recipient acknowledges that the Project may be funded with proceeds of the Lottery
Bonds and that failure to comply with the requirements of this subsection could adversely
affect any exclusion of the interest on the Lottery Bonds from gross income for federal income
tax purposes.

(8) Neither Recipient nor any related party to Recipient, within the meaning of 26 C.F.R. § 1 .1 50
1(b), shall purchase any Lottery Bonds, from which proceeds were used to finance the Project,
in an amount related to the amount of the Loan.

SECTION 9 - DEFAULTS

Any of the following constitutes an “Event of Default”:

A. Recipient fails to make any Loan payment when due.

B. Recipient fails to make, or cause to be made, any required payments of principal, redemption
premium, or interest on any bonds, notes or other material obligations, for any other loan made by
the State of Oregon.

C. Any false or misleading representation is made by or on behalf of Recipient in this Contract, in any
other Financing Document or in any document provided by Recipient related to this Loan or the
Project or in regard to compliance with the requirements of Section 103 and Sections 141 through
150 of the Code.

D. (1) A petition, proceeding or case is filed by or against Recipient under any federal or state
bankruptcy or insolvency law, and in the case of a petition filed against Recipient, Recipient
acquiesces to such petition or such petition is not dismissed within 20 calendar days after such
filing, or such dismissal is not final or is subject to appeal;

(2) Recipient files a petition seeking to take advantage of any other law relating to bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, liquidation, dissolution, winding-up or composition or adjustment
of debts;

(3) Recipient becomes insolvent or bankrupt or admits its inability to pay its debts as they become
due, or makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors;

(4) Recipient applies for or consents to the appointment of, or taking of possession by, a custodian
(including, without limitation, a receiver, liquidator or trustee) of Recipient or any substantial
portion of its property; or

(5) Recipient takes any action for the purpose of effecting any of the above.

E. Recipient defaults under any other Financing Document and fails to cure such default within the
applicable grace period.

F. Recipient fails to perform any obligation required under this Contract, other than those referred to in
subsections A through E of this section 9, and that failure continues for a period of 30 calendar days
after written notice specifying such failure is given to Recipient by OBDD. OBDD may agree in
writing to an extension of time if it determines Recipient instituted and has diligently pursued
corrective action.

L24002_Phoenix_Contract.docx Page 1 0 of 1 7

3939



SECTION 10 - REMEDIES

A. Remedies. Upon any Event of Default, OBDD may pursue any or all remedies in this Contract or
any other Financing Document, and any other remedies available at law or in equity to collect
amounts due or to become due or to enforce the performance of any obligation of Recipient.
Remedies may include, but are not limited to:

(1) Terminating OBDD’s commitment and obligation to make any further disbursements of
Financing Proceeds under the Contract.

(2) Declaring all payments under the Contract and all other amounts due under any of the
Financing Documents immediately due and payable, and upon notice to Recipient the same
become due and payable without further notice or demand.

(3) Barring Recipient from applying for future awards.

(4) Withholding amounts otherwise due to Recipient for application to the payment of amounts
due under this Contract, including as provided in ORS 2858.449.

(5) Foreclosing liens or security interests pursuant to this Contract or any other Financing
Document.

B. Application of Moneys. Any moneys collected by OBDD pursuant to section 1O.A will be applied
first, to pay any attorneys’ fees and other fees and expenses incurred by OBDD; then, to pay interest
due on the Loan; then, to pay principal due on the Loan; and last, to pay any other amounts due and
payable under this Contract or any of the Financing Documents.

C. No Remedy Exclusive; Waiver; Notice. No remedy available to OBDD is intended to be exclusive,
and every remedy will be in addition to every other remedy. No delay or omission to exercise any
right or remedy will impair or is to be construed as a waiver of such right or remedy. No single or
partial exercise of any right power or privilege under this Contract or any of the Financing
Documents will preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other such right,
power or privilege. OBDD is not required to provide any notice in order to exercise any right or
remedy, other than notice required in section 9 of this Contract.

D. Default by OBDD. In the event OBDD defaults on any obligation in this Contract, Recipient’s
remedy will be limited to injunction, special action, action for specific performance, or other
available equitable remedy for performance of OBDD’s obligations.

SECTION 11 - MISCELLANEOUS

A. Time is of the Essence. Recipient agrees that time is of the essence under this Contract and the other
Financing Documents.

B. Relationship of Parties; Successors and Assigns; No Third Party Beneficiaries.

(1) The parties agree that their relationship is that of independent contracting parties and that
Recipient is not an officer, employee, or agent of the State of Oregon as those terms are used in
ORS 30.265.

(2) Nothing in this Contract gives, or is to be construed to give, directly or indirectly, to any third
persons any rights and benefits greater than those enjoyed by the general public.

(3) This Contract will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of OBDD, Recipient, and their
respective successors and permitted assigns.

L24002_Phoenix_Contract.docx Page 11 of 1 7

4040



(4) Recipient may not assign or transfer any of its rights or obligations or any interest in this
Contract or any other Financing Document without the prior written consent of OBDD. OBDD
may grant, withhold or impose conditions on such consent in its sole discretion. In the event of
an assignment, Recipient shall pay, or cause to be paid to OBDD, any fees or costs incurred
because of such assignment, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees of OBDD’s Counsel
and Bond Counsel. Any approved assignment is not to be construed as creating any obligation
of OBDD beyond those in this Contract or other Financing Documents, nor does assignment
relieve Recipient of any of its duties or obligations under this Contract or any other Financing
Documents.

(5) Recipient hereby approves and consents to any assignment, sale or transfer of this Contract and
the Financing Documents that OBDD deems to be necessary.

C. Disclaimer of Warranties Limitation of Liability. Recipient agrees that:

(I) OBDD makes no warranty or representation, either express or implied, as to the value, design,
condition, merchantability or fitness for particular purpose or fitness for any use of the Project
or any portion of the Project, or any other warranty or representation.

(2) The liability of OBDD under this Contract is contingent upon the availability of moneys in the
Special Public Works Fund for use in the project, and in no event arc OBDD or its agents
liable or responsible for any direct, indirect, incidental, special, consequential or punitive
damages in connection with or arising out of this Contract or the existence, furnishing,
functioning or use of the Project.

D. Notices and Communication. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Contract, any
communication between the parties or notices required or permitted must be given in writing by
personal delivery, email, or by mailing the same, postage prepaid, to Recipient or OBDD at the
addresses set forth below, or to such other persons or addresses that either party may subsequently
indicate pursuant to this Section.

Any communication or notice by personal delivery will be deemed effective when actually delivered
to the addressee. Any communication or notice so addressed and mailed will be deemed to be
received and effective five (5) days after mailing. Any communication or notice given by email
becomes effective 1) upon the sender’s receipt of confirmation generated by Recipient’s email
system that the notice has been received by Recipient’s email system or 2) Recipient’s confirmation
of receipt, whichever is earlier. Notwithstanding this provision, the following notices may not be
given by email: notice of default or notice of termination.

If to OBDD: Deputy Director
Oregon Business Development Department
775 Summer Street NE Suite 200
Salem, OR 97301-1280

If to Recipient: Community & Economic Development Director
City of Phoenix
P0 Box 330
220 N Main Street
Phoenix, OR 97535

E. No Construction against Drafter. This Contract is to be construed as if the parties drafted it jointly.

F. Severability. If any term or condition of this Contract is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction
as illegal, invalid or unenforceable, that holding will not invalidate or otherwise affect any other
provision.

L24002_Phoenix_Contract.docx Page 1 2 of 1 7

4141



G. Amendments, Waivers. This Contract may not be amended without the prior written consent of
OBDD (and when required, the Department of Justice) and Recipient. This Contract may not be
amended in a manner that is not in compliance with the Act. No waiver or consent is effective unless
in writing and executed by the party against whom such waiver or consent is sought to be enforced.
Such waiver or consent will be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose
given.

H. Attorneys’ Fees and Other Expenses. To the extent permitted by the Oregon Constitution and the
Oregon Tort Claims Act, the prevailing party in any dispute arising from this Contract is entitled to
recover its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs at trial and on appeal. Reasonable attorneys’ fees
cannot exceed the rate charged to OBDD by its attorneys. Recipient shall, on demand, pay to OBDD
reasonable expenses incurred by OBDD in the collection of Loan payments.

I. Choice of Law: Designation of Forum; Federal Forum. The laws of the State of Oregon (without giving
effect to its conflicts of law principles) govern all matters arising out of or relating to this Contract,
including, without limitation, its validity, interpretation, construction, performance, and
enforcement.

Any party bringing a legal action or proceeding against any other party arising out of or relating to
this Contract shall bring the legal action or proceeding in the Circuit Court of the State of Oregon for
Marion County (unless Oregon law requires that it be brought and conducted in another county).
Each party hereby consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of such court, waives any objection to
venue, and waives any claim that such forum is an inconvenient forum.

Notwithstanding the prior paragraph, if a claim must be brought in a federal forum, then it must be
brought and adjudicated solely and exclusively within the United States District Court for the District of
Oregon. This paragraph applies to a claim brought against the State of Oregon only to the extent
Congress has appropriately abrogated the State of Oregon’s sovereign immunity and is not consent
by the State of Oregon to be sued in federal court. This paragraph is also not a waiver by the State of
Oregon of any form of defense or immunity, including but not limited to sovereign immunity and
immunity based on the Eleventh Amendment to the Constitution of the United States.

J. Integration. This Contract (including all exhibits, schedules or attachments) and the other Financing
Documents constitute the entire agreement between the parties on the subject matter. There are no
unspecified understandings, agreements or representations, oral or written, regarding this Contract.

K. Execution in Counterparts. This Contract may be signed in several counterparts, each of which is an
original and all of which constitute one and the same instrument.

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS

L24002_Phoenix_Contract.docx Page 1 3 of 1 7

4242



Recipient, by its signature below, acknowledges that it has read this Contract, understands it, and agrees
to be bound by its terms and conditions.

/4

z;j

STATE OF OREGON

acting by and through its
Oregon Business Development Department

PHOENIXo
CITY OF PHOENIX

Chris Cummings, Deputy Director
By:

Date:

Eric Swanson, City Manager

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY IN ACCORDANCE WITH ORS 29 1.047:

Is! David Berryman via email dated 18 October 2023

David Berryman, Assistant Attorney General

By:

Date:

L24002_Phoenix_Contract.docx Page 14of17

4343



EXHIBIT A - GENERAL DEFINITIONS

As used in this Contract, the following terms have the meanings below.

‘Act” means ORS 285B.410 through 285B.482, as amended.

“Award” means the award of financial assistance to Recipient by OBDD dated 06 October 2023.

“C.F.R.” means the Code of Federal Regulations.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, including any implementing
regulations and any administrative orjudicial interpretations.

“Costs of the Project” means Recipient’s actual costs (including any financing costs properly
allocable to the Project) that are (a) reasonable, necessary and directly related to the Project, (b)
permitted by generally accepted accounting principles to be Costs of the Project, and (c) are eligible or
permitted uses of the Financing Proceeds under applicable state or federal statute and rule.

“Counsel” means an attorney at law or firm of attorneys at law duly admitted to practice law before
the highest court of any state, who may be of counsel to, or an employee of, OBDD or Recipient.

“Financing Documents” means this Contract and all agreements, instruments, documents and
certificates executed pursuant to or in connection with OBDD’s financing of the Project.

“Financing Proceeds” means the proceeds of the Loan.

“Lottery Bonds” means any bonds issued by the State of Oregon that are special obligations of the
State of Oregon, payable from unob ligated net lottery proceeds, the interest on which is exempt from
federal income taxation, together with any refunding bonds, used to finance or refinance the Project
through the initial funding or refinancing of all or a portion of the Loan.

“Municipality” means any entity described in ORS 285B.410(9).

“ORS” means the Oregon Revised Statutes.

“Project Completion Date” means the date on which Recipient actually completes the Project.

“Lease Income” means income generated from any lease or rental of the building located at 112 W.
Second Street, Pheonix, Oregon, and asset(s) that result from the Project or components of the Project,
as they may be modified or expanded from time to time, including the lease agreement between
Recipient and Jackson County Fire District Number 5.

L24002_Phoenix_Contract.docx Page 1 5 of 1 7

4444



EXHIBIT B - SECURITY

A. Full Faith and Credit Pledge. Recipient pledges its full faith and credit and taxing power within the
limitations of Article XI, sections 11 and 11 b, of the Oregon Constitution to pay the amounts due
under this Contract. All amounts due under this Contract are payable from and secured by all
lawfully available funds of Recipient, including any revenue streams attributed to Lease Income.

B. Pledge of Lease Income.

1. All payment obligations under this Contract and the other Financing Documents are payable from
the revenues of Lease Income after payment of operation and maintenance costs of the building and
assets resulting from the Project (“Net Revenues”). Recipient irrevocably pledges and grants to
OBDD a security interest in the Net Revenues to pay all of its obligations under this Contract and the
other Financing Documents. The Net Revenues pledged pursuant to the preceding sentence and
received by Recipient will immediately be subject to the lien of this pledge without physical
delivery, filing or any other act, and the lien of this pledge is superior to and has priority over all
other claims and liens, except as provided in subsections 2 and 3 of this section B, to the fullest
extent permitted by ORS 287A.3 10. Recipient represents and warrants that this pledge of Net
Revenues complies with, and is valid and binding from the date of this Contract as described in,
ORS 287A.310. The lien of the pledge made under this subsection I is hereinafter referred to as the
“OBDD Lien”.

2. Recipient shall not incur, without the prior written consent of OBDD, any obligation payable from
or secured by a lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues that is on parity or superior to the OBDD
Lien. Recipient shall not amend or terminate any lease or rental agreements related to the Project or
building located at 112 W. Second Street, Pheonix, Oregon, without prior written consent of OBDD.

3. Notwithstanding the requirements of subsection 2 of this section B, loans previously made and
loans made in the future by OBDD to Recipient that arc secured by the Net Revenues may have a
lien on such Net Revenues on parity with the OBDD Lien; provided that nothing in this paragraph
will adversely affect the priority of any of OBDD’s liens on such Net Revenues in relation to the
lien(s) of any third party(ies).

4. Reserved.

5. Recipient may establish a debt service reserve fund to secure repayment of obligations that are
payable from or secured by a lien on and pledge of Net Revenues that is on parity with the OBDD
Lien, provided that no deposit of the Net Revenues of the building and assets resulting from the
Project into the debt service reserve fund is permitted until provision is made for the payment of all
debt service on the Loan and any other obligations payable from or secured by a lien on and pledge
of Net Revenues that is on parity with or superior to the OBDD Lien (including any obligations
described in subsection 3 above) for the 12-month period after such deposit.

L24002_Phoenix_Contract.docx Page 1 6 of 1 7

4545



EXHIBIT C - PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Recipient will, with the assistance of a professional architect and engineer licensed in Oregon, oversee
the construction of an approximately 21,600 square foot building, located at 112 W. Second Street,
Pheonix, Oregon, which will consist of two stories. The first floor will consist of space for the police
station, emergency operations center and the two fire station apparatus bays, which can house up to four
apparatus. The second floor will consist of space for the City of Pheonix city hail and living quarters for
the fire station, which will include kitchen, ready room and six individual sleeping quarters.

EXHIBIT D - PROJECT BUDGET

Approved OBDD Estimated Other /
Line Item Activity

Funds Matching Funds

Construction $3,500,000 $11,977,576

Construction Contingency $0 $754,759

Construction Management $0 $608,575

Legal Costs $0 $25,000

Total $3,500,000 $13,365,910

L24002_Phoenix_Contract.docx Page 17of17

4646



Agenda Item #: 8a.

Agenda Report
City of Phoenix to Mayor and Council
Heart of the Rogue Valley

Agenda item title: DC23-02 - An ordinance of the City of Phoenix to amend Chapter 2.11 of, and
add Chapter 2.12 to, the Land Development Code regarding the Holding Zone and creation of an
Exclusive Agricultural Overlay, and applying the Exclusive Agricultural Overlay to certain properties
to be annexed through Ord. 1033.

Meeting Date: 11/6/2023 Public Hearing, Consideration and Request to Pass as an Emergency
Ordinance — Effective Immediately.

From: Joe Slaughter, Deputy City Manager

Action: _Motion, X Ordinance, Resolution, _lnformation only, Other

SUMMARY
Consideration of ordinance an adopt to an update to the Land Development Code (LDC) to: 1) create
an Exclusive Agriculture (E-A) Overlay (Chapter 2.12) to provide a land use classification that allows
for the preservation of agriculture and agricultural uses on properties annexed to the City; and 2)
amend the Holding Zone (Chapter 2.11) to allow for agricultural use (when the E-A Overlay is
applied) and for the development of public and private infrastructure necessary to facilitate future
urban development. The ordinance will also apply to E-A Overlay to the following properties
approved for annexation through Ord. 1033: 381 W03 TL 1600, 381W04 TLs 500, 381W09A TLs
100, 103 & 105 and 381W10 TLs 101 & 103.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION
The proposed amendments to the Phoenix Land Development Code will create an Exclusive
Agriculture (E-A) Overlay to provide a land use classification that allows for the preservation
of agriculture and agricultural uses on properties annexed to the City. The overlay may only be
applied upon the request of the property owner, and only if the use on the parcel(s) is agriculture. The
overlay can be removed utilizing the Land Use District Map Amendment (zone change) procedures
of Chapter 4.7. For removal of the E-A overlay, the property owner must certify that
all agriculture and agriculture-related uses not otherwise permitted by the underlying zoning district
have been terminated by the date of application for removal of the E-A overlay, and shall not be
considered legal nonconformities. The proposed amendments will also amend the Holding Zone
(Chapter 2.11) to allow for agricultural use (when the E-A Overlay is applied) and for the
development of public and private infrastructure necessary to facilitate future urban development.

The City of Phoenix was allocated $4,500,000 in the 2023 legislative session (see Section 248, SB
5506 attached) for infrastructure development in the South Valley Employment Center, which is the
employment portions of PH-5. Much of this area will be annexed to the City under file number AN23-
02 to help facilitate the development of infrastructure into the area. As described in the annexation
ordinance (ORD. 1033), the PH-5 properties’ will be assigned the Holding Zone designation upon
annexation as the land will not be available for urban development until Urbanization Element
Policies 2.1 —2.3, along with all applicable provisions of Phoenix Land Development Code Chapter
4.7 have been addressed. The owners of the land have requested that the E-A Overlay be assigned to

Also referred to Arrowhead properties concerning ownership or EFU properties concerning zoning.

City Council Agenda Report

4747



the properties to allow for the continuation of existing agricultural uses until the property is made
available for urban development.

The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on October 9, 2023 on the proposed
amendment, affording all citizens an opportunity to be heard on the subject. The Planning
Commission deliberated and forwarded a unanimous recommendation of approval to the City
Council.

COUNCIL GOALS SUPPORTED
Goal 8: Promote and encourage developers. Maintain responsive and effective planning and building
services.
Goal 9: Continue to advocate for PH-3 and PH-5 inclusion.

FISCAL IMPACT
The ordinance will make it possible for properties in agricultural use to continue to receive
agricultural assessment. This will reduce taxes received from these properties until the agricultural
use is discontinued and the EA overlay removed. However, the properties would not be annexing at
this time if not for the possibility of maintaining agricultural assessment. The proposed overlay will
help to facilitate the development of urban infrastructure, ultimately making the land ready for
development which will add significantly to the City’s tax base.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends the council conduct a public hearing for consideration of ordinance No. 1034.

PROPOSED MOTION
I move to approve, on reading by title only, an ordinance to amend Chapter 2.11 of and add Chapter 2.12
to the Land Development Code, and to apply the Exclusive Agricultural Overlay to certain properties
to be annexed through Ordinance 1033, and further move, that an emergency is declared to exist, and this
Ordinance, being necessaiy for the immediate preservation ofthe public peace, health, and safety, takes effect
on its passage.

ATTACHMENTS
• Draft Ordinance No. 1034
• Letter of Support — Arrowhead Ranch
• Agenda packet for October 9, 2023 Planning Commission meeting (contains mark-up version of

proposed changes along with findings contained in Planning Commission Final Order).

City Council Agenda Report

4848



CITY OF PHOENIX, OREGON

ORDINANCE NO. 1034

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PHOENIX
TO AMEND CHAPTER 2.11 OF AND ADD CHAPTER 2.12 TO

THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE REGARDING THE HOLDING ZONE
AND AN EXCLUSIVE AGRICULTURE OVERLAY, AND APPLYING THE

EXCLUSIVE AGRICULTURE OVERLAY TO CERTAIN PROPERTIES
TO BE ANNEXED TO THE CITY THROUGH ORD. 1033

WHEREAS, Oregon law requires that state, regional and local governments adopt and
periodically update coordinated Comprehensive Plans and implementing ordinances;
and

WHEREAS, the City of Phoenix implements its Comprehensive Plan through Ordinance
No. 851, the Phoenix Land Development Code (LDC), which was adopted in 2005 and
substantially modified through Ordinance No. 999, which was adopted in 2019; and

WHEREAS, periodic Development Code updates are warranted in response to
identified issues where the existing language no longer serves the City’s interests or
may in fact be inconsistent with changes in State and/or case law; and

WHEREAS, the amendment to the City’s Land Development Code (LDC) contained in
Exhibit 1 will: 1) create an Exclusive Agriculture (E-A) Overlay (Chapter 2.12) to provide a
land use classification that allows for the preservation of agriculture and agricultural uses
on properties annexed to the City; and 2) amend the Holding Zone (Chapter 2.11) to allow
for agricultural use (when the E-A Overlay is applied) and for the development of public
and private infrastructure necessary to facilitate future urban development; and

WHEREAS, the owners of the following properties have requested the properties receive
the E-A Overlay upon annexation: 381 W03 TL 1600, 381 W04 TLs 500, 381 WO9A TLs
100, 103 & 105 and 381 W10 TLs 101 & 103; and

WHEREAS, the properties were approved for annexation through Ord. 1033 contingent
on the City creating an exclusive agricultural overlay; and

WHEREAS, on October 9, 2023, the Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed
public hearing on the proposed amendment, affording all citizens an opportunity to be
heard on the subject; and

WHEREAS, following receipt of staff testimony at the October 9, 2023 public hearing,
the Planning Commission deliberated and forwarded a unanimous recommendation of
approval to the City Council; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has fully reviewed the record and deems all notices and
comments to the record as compliant with state law and the City of Phoenix Land

City of Phoenix Ordinance No. 1034

4949



Development Code, and that no further action is necessary before the Planning
Commission; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the Planning Commission’s
recommendation, the staff reports in this matter, and testimony and evidence of
interested parties, and has evaluated the proposed amendments against Statewide
Goals, state, county, and regional requirements, the Comprehensive Plan, and other
applicable standards.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF PHOENIX ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Findings. The City Council hereby adopts as findings and conclusions of
the foregoing recitals.

SECTION 2. Order. The City Council hereby adopts the amendment to the City of
Phoenix Land Development Code attached as Exhibit 1 and the City of Phoenix Land
Use Districts map attached as Exhibit 2 incorporated as set forth fully herein.

SECTION 3. Limitation. Except as expressly amended in this amendment, all other
sections and provisions of the original ordinance are still in full force and effect.

SECTION 4. Staff Directive. To reflect adoption of the ordinance, Staff is directed to
make conforming changes to the City of Phoenix Land Development Code necessary to
incorporate the amendment adopted herein.

SECTION 5. Severability. The sections, subsections, paragraphs and clauses of this
ordinance are severable. The invalidity of one section, subsection, paragraph, or clause
shall not affect the validity of the remaining sections, subsections, paragraphs and
clauses.

SECTION 6. Codification. Provisions of this Ordinance shall be incorporated in the City
Code and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “code”, “article”, “section”, “chapter”
or another word, and the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered, or re-lettered,
provided however that any Whereas clauses and boilerplate provisions (i.e. Sections
2-4) need not be codified and the City Recorder is authorized to correct any
cross-references and any typographical errors.

SECTION 7. Emergency/Effective Date. This Ordinance being necessary for the
immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety, an emergency is
declared to exist, and this Ordinance takes effect on its passage.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council and signed by me in authentication of
thereof on this Q6th day of November, 2023.

Terry Baker, Mayor

City of Phoenix Ordinance No. 1034

5050



ATTEST: Approved as to form:

Bonnie Pickett, City Recorder Douglas McGeary, City Attorney

City of Phoenix Ordinance No. 1034

5151



ORDINANCE NO. 1034
TO AMEND CHAPTER 2.11 OF AND ADD CHAPTER 2.12 TO

THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE
“EXHIBIT 1”

Chapter 2.11 — Holding Zone (H-Z)

Sections
2.11.1 —Purpose 103
2.11.2 — Permitted Land Uses 103
2.11.3 — Land Division Prohibited 103

2.11.1 — Purpose
The primary purpose of this zoning district is to provide a zoning designation for properties
annexed to the City that have not yet been tested for facility adequacy to allow development of
urban level densities and intensities. Properties will receive the City zoning designation which
most closely matches existing Jackson County zoning upon annexation. Where no generally
equivalent zoning exists (e.g., Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) properties), properties will be assigned
the Holding Zone designation upon annexation unless a concurrent application for Land Use
District Map Amendment (zone change), meeting the standards of Chapter 4.7, is submitted and
approved.

2.11.2 — Permitted Uses
Development and improvements within an H-Z zoning district shall be restricted to:

• New construction or remodeling of one single-family dwelling and accessory dwelling
unit per existing parcel.

• The constructionlinstallation of public and private facilities (including municipal water,
sanitary sewer, public roads, and franchise utilities) necessary to facilitate future urban
development.

• Agricultural buildings and other improvements directly related to farming when the
Exclusive Agricultural (E-A) Overlay is also applied.

2.11.3 — Land Division Prohibited
Except for portions of existing lots or parcels that have received zoning by meeting the standards
of Chapter 4.7, no new parcels or lots may be created in the Holding Zone. This section does not
preclude the adjustment of existing property lines.

2.12 — Exclusive Agriculture (E-A) Overlay

Sections
2.12.1 — Purpose 104
2.12.2 — Criterion for Application of E-A 104
2.12.3 — Criterion for Removal of E-A 104

2.12.1 — Purpose

City of Phoenix Ordinance No. 1034

5252



The E-A overlay district is intended to provide a land use classification within an urban area that
allows for the preservation of agriculture and agricultural uses through zoning.

2.12.2 — Criterion for Application of E-A
At the request of the property owner, the City may apply the E-A overlay to a parcel(s) if the use
on the parcel(s) is agriculture, as defined herein.

2.12.3 — Criterion for Removal of E-A
The E-A overlay may be removed utilizing the Land Use District Map Amendment (zone
change) procedures of Chapter 4.7. For removal of the E-A overlay, the property owner must
certify that all agriculture and agriculture-related uses not otherwise permitted by the underlying
zoning district have been terminated by the date of application for removal of the E-A overlay,
and shall not be considered legal nonconformities.

2.12.4 — Permitted Uses and Development, E-A
Development and improvements within an E-A overlay district shall be restricted to:

• Agricultural buildings and other improvements directly related to farming.
• Property line adj ustments.
• New construction or remodeling of one single-family dwelling and accessory dwelling

unit per existing parcel.
• The constructionlinstallation of public and private facilities (including municipal water,

sanitary sewer, public roads, and franchise utilities) necessary to facilitate future urban
development.

City of Phoenix Ordinance No. 1034

5353



D’CDNNDR LAWILLc

541 .7025350 670 G STREET, SUITE B, JACKSONVILLE, OR 97530

October 6, 2023

Via Email Submittal

Joe Slaughter
Deputy City Manager
City of Phoenix
220 N. Main Street
Phoenix, OR 97535

RE: DC23-02 / ORDINANCE NO. 1034: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PHOENIX
TO AMEND CHAPTER 2.11 AND ADD CHAPTER 2.12 TO THE LAND DEVELOPMENT
CODE REGARDING THE HOLDING ZONE AND CREATION OF EXCLUSIVE
AGRICULTURAL OVERLAY AND APPLYING THE EXCLUSIVE AGRICULTURAL
OVERLAY TO CERTAIN PROPERTIES TO BE ANNEXED THROUGH ORDINANCE 1033

Mr. Slaughter:

This firm represents Arrowhead Ranch Holding Company, LLC, an Oregon limited liability
company (“Arrowhead Ranch”). Arrowhead Ranch is the owner of certain real property located in
Jackson County, Oregon, and commonly known as Township 38 South, Range 1 West, Section
03, Tax Lot 1600; Township 38 South, Range 1 West, Section 04, Tax Lot 500; Township 38
South, Range 1 West, Section 09A, Tax Lots 100, 103 and 105; Township 38 South, Range I
West, Section 10, Tax Lots 100, 101 and 103 (collectively, “the Arrowhead Ranch Property”). The
purpose of this correspondence is to emphasize Arrowhead Ranch’s support of proposed
Ordinance No. 1034.

Your attention to this matter is greatly appreciated.

Yours truly,
O’CONNOR LAW, LLC

DANfEL B. O’CONNOR

5454



Community & Economic Development Department
220 N. Main Street / P.O. Box 330

Phoenix, Oregon 97535
(541) 535-2050

O•R•E•G•O•N

DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT - DC23-02 STAFF REPORT

File: DA23-02 - Creation of an Exclusive Agriculture Overlay - Chapter 2.12 and Modification of
Holding Zone — Chapter 2.11 (Type IV Text Amendment)

Location: N/A

Land Use District: N/A

Date Notice of Application Published: September 15, 2023

Date of Hearing: October 9, 2023 (ist evidentiary hearing)

I. OWNER INFORMATION
N/A

II. APPLICANT
City of Phoenix
Joe Slaughter, Community & Economic Development Director
P0 Box 330
Phoenix, OR 97535

Ill. SUMMARY OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS

The proposed amendments to the Phoenix Land Development Code will create an Exclusive
Agriculture (E-A) Overlay to provide a land use classification that allows for the preservation
of agriculture and agricultural uses on properties annexed to the City. The overlay may only
be applied upon the request of the property owner, and only if the use on the parcel(s)
is agriculture. The overlay can be removed utilizing the Land Use District Map Amendment
(zone change) procedures of Chapter 4.7. For removal of the E-A overlay, the property owner
must certify that all agriculture and agriculture-related uses not otherwise permitted by the
underlying zoning district have been terminated by the date of application for removal of the
E-A overlay, and shall not be considered legal nonconformities. The proposed amendments
will also amend the Holding Zone (Chapter 2.11) to allow for agricultural use (when the E-A
Overlay is applied) and for the development of public and private infrastructure necessary to
facilitate future urban development.

The City of Phoenix was allocated $4,500,000 in the 2023 legislative session (see Section
248, SB 5506 attached) for infrastructure development in the South Valley Employment
Center, which is the employment portions of PH-S. Much of this area will be annexed to the
City under file number AN23-02 to help facilitate the development of infrastructure into the
area. As described in the annexation ordinance (ORD. 1033), the PH-5 properties’ will be
assigned the Holding Zone designation upon annexation as the land will not be available for
urban development until Urbanization Element Policies 2.1 — 2.3, along with all applicable
provisions of Phoenix Land Development Code Chapter 4.7 have been addressed. The
owners of the land have requested that the E-A Overlay be assigned to the properties to allow

Also referred to Arrowhead properties concerning ownership or EFU properties concerning zoning.

DA23-02 Staff Report I

5555



Community & Economic Development Department
220 N. Main Street / P.O. Box 330

Phoenix, Oregon 97535
(541) 535-2050

for the continuation of existing agricultural uses until the property is made available for urban
development.

IV. APPLICABLE CRITERIA
PLDC, Chapter 4.1.6 — Type IV Procedure (Legislative)
PLDC, Chapter 4.7.2 — Legislative Amendments

V. AGENCY COMMENTS
N/A

VI. PUBLIC COMMENTS
None

VII. RECOMMENDATION
Based on the findings for the text amendment, staff recommends APPROVAL of the
amendments as outlined in the Proposed Final Order and that the amendments be forwarded
to the City Council for consideration.

VIII. PROPOSED MOTION
“I move to recommend City Council approve the text amendment to add Chapter 2.12 and
amend Chapter 2.11 in the Phoenix Land Development Code as outlined in the Planning
Commission Final Order.”

IX. EXHIBITS
A. Specific Text to be Amended
B. PC Proposed Final Order
C. Section 248, SB 5506

Respectfully Submitted,

Joe Slaughter
Community & Economic Development Director

O•R•E•G•O•N

DA23-02 Staff Report 2

5656



Exhibit “A”

Text to be added/amended in the Phoenix Development Code:
New Text = Bold
Deleted Text = Strikethrough

Chapter 2.11 — Holding Zone (H-Z)

Sections
2.11.1 —Purpose 103
2.11.2 — Permitted and Conditionally Permitted Land Uses 103
2.11.3 — Land Division Prohibited 103

2.11.1 — Purpose
Purpose. The primary purpose of this zoning district is to provide a zoning designation for
properties annexed to the City that have not yet been tested for facility adequacy to allow
development of urban level densities and intensities. Properties will receive the City zoning
designation which most closely matches existing Jackson County zoning upon annexation. Where
no generally equivalent zoning exists (e.g., Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) properties), properties will
be assigned the Holding Zone designation upon annexation unless a concurrent application for
Land Use District Map Amendment (zone change), meeting the standards of Chapter 4.7, is
submitted and approved.

2.11.2 — Permitted Uses
Properties in this zoning district are allowed one dwelling unit meeting the development standards
of the R I zone and one accessory’ dwelling.
Development and improvements within an H-Z zoning district shall be restricted to:

• New construction or remodeling of one single-family dwelling and accessory
dwelling unit per existing parcel.

• The construction/installation of public and private facilities (including municipal
water, sanitary sewer, public roads, and franchise utilities) necessary to facilitate
future urban development.

• Agricultural buildings and other improvements directly related to farming when the
Exclusive Agricultural (E-A) Overlay is also applied.

2.11.3 — Land Division Prohibited
Except for portions of existing lots or parcels that have received zoning by meeting the standards
of Chapter 4.7, no new parcels or lots may be created in the Holding Zone. This section does not
preclude the adjustment of existing property lines.

5757



2.12 — Exclusive Agriculture (E-A) Overlay
Sections

2.12.1 — Purpose 104
2.12.2 — Criterion for Application of E-A 104
2.12.3 — Criterion for Removal of E-A 104

2.12.1 — Purpose
The E-A overlay district is intended to provide a land use classification within an urban
area that allows for the preservation of agriculture and agricultural uses through zoning.

2.12.2 — Criterion for Application of E-A
At the request of the property owner, the City may apply the E-A overlay to a parcel(s) if
the use on the parcel(s) is agriculture, as defined herein.

2.12.3 — Criterion for Removal of E-A
The E-A overlay may be removed utilizing the Land Use District Map Amendment (zone
change) procedures of Chapter 4.7. For removal of the E-A overlay, the property owner
must certify that all agriculture and agriculture-related uses not otherwise permitted by
the underlying zoning district have been terminated by the date of application for removal
of the E-A overlay, and shall not be considered legal nonconformities.

2.12.4 — Permitted Uses and Development, E-A
Development and improvements within an E-A overlay district shall be restricted to:

• Agricultural buildings and other improvements directly related to farming.
• Property line adjustments.
• New construction or remodeling of one single-family dwelling and accessory

dwelling unit per existing parcel.
• The construction/installation of public and private facilities (including municipal

water, sanitary sewer, public roads, and franchise utilities) necessary to facilitate
future urban development.

5858



EXHIBIT”B”

0 • R • I • (; • 0 •

BEFORE THE PHOENIX PLANNING COMMISSION

STATE OF OREGON, CITY OF PHOENIX

IN THE MATTER OF PLANNING FILE NO. DC23-02 ADDING )

CHAPTER 2.12 - EXCLUSIVE AGRICULTURE (E-A) OVERLAY, ) ORDER

AND AMEDNING CHAPTER 2.11 - HOLDING ZONE (H-Z) IN
THE PHOENIX LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, THE PHOENIX
PLANNING COMMISSION FINDS

1. The Planning Commission held a properly noticed public hearing on this
matter on October 9, 2023;

2. The Planning Commission asked the Community & Economic Development
Director to present a Staff report and a final order with findings and recom
mendations at the public hearing;

3. At the public hearing evidence was presented and the public was given an
opportunity to comment;

4. The Planning Commission finds that the proposed text amendment is con
sistent with the Phoenix Comprehensive Plan and the Phoenix Land Devel
opment Code.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT based on the information presented in the
staff report and the following findings of fact, the Phoenix Planning
Commission recommends approval of the proposed text amendment to the
Phoenix Land Development Code, adding Chapter 2.12 — Exclusive
Agriculture (E-A) Overlay and amending Chapter 2.11 — Holding Zone (H-Z).

In the following, any text quoted directly from City codes appears in italics; Plan
ning Commission findings appear in regular typeface.

PHOENIX LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE

4.7.1 Purpose
The purpose of this Chapter is to provide standards and procedures for legislative
and quasi-judicial amendments to this Code and the land-use district map. These
will be referred to as “map and text amendments.” Amendments may be necessary
from time to time to reflect changing community conditions, needs, and desires, to
correct mistakes, or to address changes in the law.

Phoenix Planning Commission Final Order
File no. DA23-02

Applicant: City of Phoenix

5959



4.7.2 Legislative Amendments
A. Legislative Amendments. Legislative amendments are policy decisions made

by City Council. They are reviewed using the Type IV Procedure in Chapter
4.1.6 — Type IV Procedure (Legislative) and shall conform to the criteria listed
in 4.7. 2.B and to Chapter 4.7.6— Transportation Planning Rule Compliance, as
applicable.

FINDING: As a legislative amendment and consistent with the Type IV procedures
in Chapter 4.1.6, the Planning Commission shall make a recommendation to the
City Council on this amendment pursuant to the criteria in Chapter 4.7.2 (B) and
Chapter 4.7.6 below. As part of this requirement, the Planning Commission held a
properly noticed public hearing on the matter on October 9, 2023. The standard is
met.

B. Criteria for Legislative Amendments.
The text of this Development Code may be recommended for amendment and
amended provided that all the following criteria are met:
1. The proposed amendment is consistent with the purpose of the subject sec

tion and article.
2. The proposed amendment is consistent with other Provisions of this Code.
3. The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals and policies of the

Comprehensive Plan, and most effectively carries out those goals and pol
icies of all alternatives considered.

FINDING: The text amendment as proposed will create Chapter 2.12 of the Land
Development Code. There is no existing “purpose” for this Chapter in the Code.
The “purpose” will be adopted along with the creation of the other details of the
Chapter. The timing of the creation of this Chapter, and the uexclusive agriculture
overlay” it accomplishes, is based on the need to annex large tracts of land, cur
rently zoned EFU in the County, to facilitate the development of infrastructure into
these areas. The land will not be available for urban levels of development until
Urbanization Element Policies 2.1 — 2.3, along with all applicable provisions of
Phoenix Land Development Code Chapter 4.7 have been addressed. The assign
ment of the proposed Exclusive Agriculture Overlay will allow for the continued use
of the property for agriculture upon annexation. The purpose of Chapter 2.11 is to
provide a zoning designation for properties annexed to the City that have not yet
been tested for facility adequacy to allow for development of urban level densities
and intensities. The proposed changes to this chapter are consistent with the pur
pose of the chapter as they, along with the E-A Overlay, allow for the continuation
of agricultural uses and the construction of urban infrastructure, while still restrict
ing urban development.

The proposed E-A Overlay will be used in tandem with the Holding Zone designa
tion to allow for the continuation of agricultural uses on properties annexed to the
City prior to that land being available for urban development. This is an interim step

Page 2

6060



in the zoning process that will simplify the development of urban infrastructure
while also preserving the current use. The changes to the holding zone will also
allow for the continuation of agriculture use and the development of urban infra
structure. These efforts support portions of the Land Use and Urbanization Ele
ments in providing a coordinated process for the urbanization of the lands recently
added to the City’s UGB. Prior to developing lands added to the UGB from urban
reserve area PH-5, the owners/developers must first submit an application for a
Comprehensive Plan amendment to adopt specific area or neighborhood plans
consistent with Policy 2.1. of the Urbanization Element and the City must adopt
applicable standards per Policies 2.2 and 2.3, which safeguard against parceliza
tion and establish an industrial employment zone for the area. This is one of sev
eral steps to be taken in amending the Comprehensive Plan and Development
Code to facilitate the development of these areas recently added to the UBG. The
criteria are met.

4.7.4 — Conditions of Approval
A quasi-judicial decision may be for denial, approval, or approval with conditions.
A legislative decision may be approved, modified, or denied.

FINDING: As a legislative amendment, no conditions of approval are warranted
or proposed. The standard is met.

4.7.6 — Transportation Planning Rule Compliance
A. When a development application includes a proposed comprehensive plan

amendment or land use district change, the proposal shall be reviewed to de
termine whether it significantly affects a transportation facility, in accordance
with Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 660-012-0060. Significant means the
proposal would:

1. Change the functional classification of an existing or planned transporta
tion faculty. This would occur, for example, when a proposal causes future
traffic to exceed the capacity of collector street classification, requiring a
change in the classification to an arterial street, as identified by the Com
prehensive Plan and the Transportation System Plan; or

2. Change the standards implementing a functional classification system; or
3. Allow types or levels of land use that would result in levels of travel or ac

cess what are inconsistent with the functional classification of a transpor
tation facility; or

4. Reduce the level of seivice of the facility below the minimum acceptable
level identified in the Comprehensive Plan and the Transportation System
Plan.

FINDING: The proposed amendments have no direct impact on the functional
classification of existing or planned transportation facilities, nor are there any
changes to standards that implement a functional classification. Reduced levels

Page 3

6161



of service of transportation facilities are not anticipated as part of these amend
ments. The criteria are met.

B. Amendments to the comprehensive plan and land use standards which signif
icantly affect a transportation facility shall assure that allowed land uses are
consistent with the function, capacity, and level of seivice of the facility identi
fied in the Transportation System Plan. This shall be accomplished by one of
the following:

1. Limiting allowed land uses to be consistent with the planned function of
the transportation facility; or

2. Amending the Transportation System Plan to ensure that existing, im
proved, or new transportation facilities are adequate to support the pro
posed land uses consistent with the requirement of the Transportation
Planning Rule; or,

3. Altering land use designations, densities, or design requirements to reduce
demand for automobile travel and meet travel needs through other modes
of transportation.

FINDING: The proposed amendments do not significantly affect the city’s trans
portation facilities. The criteria are not applicable.

Date

Dae
Planning

Page 4

6262



Exhibit “C”

Section 248 from 2023 Oregon Senate Bill 5506

SECTION 248. Notwithstanding any other law limiting expenditures, the limitation on
expenditures established by section 4 (3), chapter, Oregon Laws 2023 (Enrolled Senate Bill 5524), for

the biennium beginning July 1, 2023, as the maximum limit for payment of expenses from fees, moneys

or other revenues, including Miscellaneous Receipts, but excluding lottery funds and federal funds,
collected or received by the Oregon Business Development Department, for infrastructure, is increased
by the following amounts, for the issuance of grants from proceeds of lottery revenue bonds, for the

following projects:

(1) Umatilla Electrical Cooperative Association Industrial Site Utility Expansion: $5,000,000.

(2) City of Phoenix Industrial Improvements, South Valley Employment Center: $4,500,000.

(3) City of Aumsville Wastewater System Improvements: $5,000,000.

(4) City of Molalla New Wastewater Treatment Plant: $5,000,000.

(5) City of Newport Wastewater Treatment and Conveyance System Improvements: $3,825,000.

(6) Port of Coos Bay Channel Modification: $20,000,000.

6363



Agenda Item #: 9b.

Meeting Date: November 6, 2023

From: Eric Swanson, City Manager

Action: Motion, Ordinance, Xlnformation only, Other

SUMMARY
Council adopted a revised (2021) Strategic Plan in October 2021. The plan includes
Council Goals, Objectives and specific Actions to be taken over the life of the plan. This
report provides an update regarding the status of each of the actions identified in the plan.
It has been approximately 6 months since the last status update in May, 2023 and
progress reports are expected to occur twice a year. This is the fourth 6-month update
since the adoption of the plan.

The entire 2021 Strategic Plan document can be found here: 2021 Strategic Plan

Update highlights:
• Of the 29 action items with identifiable completions (those that are not

continues/ongoing), all but 3 have been completed.
• 1.d.1. - Contract for services to rebuild website: Completed since last update.
• 5.a.3. — . . . develop shared parking that could benefit the development of other PHURA

properties along with the development of other properties within the urban renewal
district boundary: A presentation was made to the CDBG-DR PIER Selection
Committee for the development of shared parking and stormwater infrastructure
downtown along with sidewalks on Hwy 99 south of downtown.

• 5.b.1. — Improve website information for PHURA: Moved PHURA to new website.
CEDEV responsible for updating PHURA grant and other information. Continue to
improve PHURA and other economic development information.

• 6.c.1. — Pursue State, Federal and private grants: City awarded over $30 million in
grants over the past three years and we continue to seek additional funding for
identified needs.

• 11 .d.1. — Update Parks Master Plan to account for UGB expansion: Awarded $39,930
in Local Government Grant Program (LGGP) funding from Oregon Parks and
Recreation Department (OPRD) to update Phoenix Parks Master Plan.

• 14.e.1. - If budget is available, hire limited duration Senior/Associate Planner position to
aid with emergency operations planning: New Deputy CM assigned Emergency
Management duties. City coordinated Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan update with
Jackson County. Emergency operations planning, hazard mitigation planning, and
emergency preparedness are priorities in work plan.

Agenda Report
City of Phoenix to Mayor and Council
Heart of the Rogue Valley

Agenda item title: Report on status of 2021 Strategic Plan action items

City Council Agenda Report

6464



FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

RECOMMENDATION
N/A

PROPOSED MOTION
N/A

ATTACHMENTS
Strategic Plan Status Update November 2023

City Council Agenda Report

6565



N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r
,

2
0
2

3
S

t
a
t
u
s

o
f

A
c
t
i
o

n
I
t
e
m

s
f
r
o

m
2
0
2
1

S
t
r
a
t
e
g

i
c

P
l
a
n

C
or

n
p

le
te

d
O

n
g

o
in

g
In

D
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t

A
ct

io
n

D
ep

t.
IT

im
el

in
e

S
ta

tu
s

C
o
m

m
en

ts
C

h
an

g
e

P
er

P
la

n
in

S
ta

tu
s

C
at

eg
o

ry
S

in
ce

A
p

ri
l?

1.
a.

1.
U

pd
at

e
C

ou
nc

il
ru

le
s

of
G

ov
er

nm
en

t
C

M
/C

R
-

on
go

in
g

O
ng

oi
ng

N
o

w
he

n
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

T
ra

in
ne

w
C

ou
nc

il
or

s
an

d
co

m
pl

et
e

re
fr

es
he

r
tr

ai
ni

ng
at

th
e

be
gi

nn
in

g
of

ea
ch

ye
ar

.
I.

b.
1.

C
re

at
e

C
ity

ne
w

sl
et

te
r

to
be

m
ai

le
d

w
ith

C
E

D
E

V
/C

M
/F

in
.

-
C

om
pl

et
ed

T
he

fi
rs

t
ne

w
si

ef
fe

r
w

ill
go

N
o

w
at

er
bi

lls
qu

ar
te

rl
y.

Ju
n.

20
22

ou
t

w
ith

th
e

ne
w

w
at

er
bi

lls
in

D
ec

em
be

r.
1.

b.
2.

R
ed

es
ig

n
w

at
er

bi
ll.

Fi
n.

-
M

ar
.

20
22

C
om

pl
et

ed
W

at
er

bi
lls

ha
ve

be
en

N
o

re
de

si
gn

ed
.

Fi
rs

t
m

ai
lin

g
w

ill
be

D
ec

em
be

r
20

22
.

1.
b.

3.
M

on
th

ly
pu

bl
ic

an
no

un
ce

m
en

ts
vi

a
C

R
on

go
in

g
O

ng
oi

ng
N

o
w

eb
si

te
,

F
ac

eb
oo

k,
et

c.
I.

d.
1.

C
o
n

tr
ac

t
fo

r
se

rv
ic

es
to

re
b

u
il

d
C

R
—

D
ec

.
20

22
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

W
eb

si
te

co
m

p
le

te
d
.

Y
es

w
eb

si
te

.
1.

e.
1

S
ch

ed
ul

e
R

ob
er

ts
R

ul
es

of
O

rd
er

tr
ai

ni
ng

C
M

/C
R

-
on

go
in

g
O

ng
oi

ng
N

o
fo

r
C

ity
C

ou
nc

il
an

d
vo

lu
nt

ee
r

bo
ar

ds
.

1.
e.

2.
C

om
m

un
it

y
an

d
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
C

E
D

E
V

-
on

go
in

g
O

ng
oi

ng
N

o
D

ep
t

to
id

en
tif

y
tr

ai
ni

ng
op

po
rt

un
it

ie
s

fo
r

P
la

nn
in

g
C

om
m

is
si

on
er

s
th

ro
ug

h
A

PA
,

L
ea

gu
e

of
O

re
go

n
C

iti
es

,
et

c.

1

6666



2
.a

.1
.

C
o
n
d
u
ct

sa
la

ry
su

rv
ey

.
C

M
-

D
ec

.
2

0
2

2
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

N
o

2
.a

.2
.

A
d
ju

st
p

ay
sc

al
e

b
as

ed
on

re
su

lt
s

of
C

M
-

Ju
n

.
2

0
2

3
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

C
it

y
of

P
h

o
en

ix
w

as
w

it
hi

n
N

o
sa

la
ry

su
rv

ey
,

th
e

m
ar

k
et

af
te

r
re

vi
ew

in
g

m
ar

k
et

st
u
d
y
.

3%
C

O
L

A
w

as
ad

d
ed

to
al

l
st

af
f

Ju
ly

1
2
0
2
2
.

2
.b

.1
.

E
n
su

re
st

an
d
ar

d
iz

ed
p

ro
ce

ss
fo

r
C

M
-

o
n
g
o
in

g
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

E
v
al

u
at

io
n

d
at

e
re

p
o
rt

is
ru

n
N

o
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
ev

al
u
at

io
n
s,

at
th

e
b
eg

in
n
in

g
of

ea
ch

m
o
n
th

to
fl

ag
em

p
lo

y
ee

s
w

h
o

h
av

e
an

u
p
co

m
in

g
ev

al
ua

ti
on

du
e.

2
.b

.2
.

U
se

ti
m

el
y

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

ev
al

u
at

io
n

C
M

-
o
n
g
o
in

g
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

S
u
p
er

v
is

o
rs

ar
e

no
ti

fi
ed

N
o

co
m

pl
et

io
n

as
a

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

in
di

ca
to

r
fo

r
D

ep
t

w
he

n
th

ey
ar

e
to

co
m

pl
et

e
H

ea
d

s/
C

it
y

M
an

ag
er

.
an

ev
al

u
at

io
n

on
o
n
e

of
th

ei
r

st
af

f
m

em
b

er
s

to
en

su
re

in
cr

ea
se

is
m

ad
e

on
ti

m
e

in
ac

co
rd

an
ce

to
th

e
C

B
A

.

2
.c

.1
.

C
o
m

p
le

te
in

ce
n
ti

v
e

p
ay

su
rv

ey
.

C
M

-
M

ar
.

2
0
2
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
A

d
d
ed

lo
n

g
ev

it
y

p
ay

an
d

N
o

in
cr

ea
se

d
ad

d
it

io
n
al

co
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

fo
r

ce
rt

if
ic

at
io

n
s

in
PW

.
2
.e

.1
.

U
se

ex
is

ti
n
g

IG
A

w
it

h
R

V
C

O
G

to
C

M
-

D
ec

.
2

0
2

2
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

O
n
g
o
in

g
ef

fo
rt

s
to

en
su

re
N

o
co

m
p
le

te
re

v
ie

w
of

jo
b

d
es

cr
ip

ti
o
n
s,

ac
cu

ra
te

,
u
p
d
at

ed
jo

b
d
es

cr
ip

ti
o
n
s

fo
r

al
l

p
o
si

ti
o
n
s.

2.
f.

1.
U

se
ex

is
ti

n
g

IG
A

w
it

h
R

V
C

O
G

to
C

M
-

D
ec

.
2
0
2
2

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
C

re
at

ed
H

R
st

af
f

p
o

si
ti

o
n

to
N

o
co

m
p

le
te

st
an

d
ar

d
iz

ed
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
co

m
p
le

te
th

e
se

fu
n
ct

io
n
s

ev
al

u
at

io
n

s,
sa

la
ry

an
d

in
ce

n
ti

v
e

p
ay

su
rv

ey
s,

u
p

d
at

e
jo

b
d
es

cr
ip

ti
o
n
s,

et
c.

2.
f.

2.
A

m
en

d
G

en
er

al
U

ni
t

co
ll

ec
ti

v
e

b
ar

g
ai

n
in

g
C

E
D

E
V

-
D

ec
.

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
A

d
d
ed

O
ct

o
b
er

2
0
2
2

N
o

ag
re

em
en

t
to

ad
d

S
en

io
r

P
la

n
n
er

an
d

A
ss

o
ci

at
e

20
21

P
la

n
n

er
p

o
si

ti
o

n
s.

2.
f.

3.
If

b
u
d

g
et

is
av

ai
la

b
le

,
hi

re
li

m
it

ed
d
u
ra

ti
o
n

C
E

D
E

V
-

Ja
n

.
A

ss
o
ci

at
e

P
la

n
n
er

P
la

n
n
in

g
ef

fo
rt

s
N

o

S
en

io
r/

A
ss

o
ci

at
e

P
la

n
n

er
p
o
si

ti
o
n

to
ai

d
w

it
h

2
0
2
2

H
ir

ed
4
/1

1
/2

0
2
2

o
n
g
o
in

g

2

6767



lo
ng

-r
an

ge
pl

an
ni

ng
ef

fo
rt

s
re

la
te

d
to

fi
re

re
co

ve
ry

an
d

U
G

B
ex

pa
ns

io
n.

5.
a.

1.
W

or
k

w
ith

P
ho

en
ix

P
ho

od
er

y
to

re
ac

h
an

C
E

D
E

V
/C

M
-

D
ec

.
P

ro
pe

rt
y

tr
an

sf
er

re
d

L
an

d
u
se

pe
rm

it
s

is
su

ed
N

o
ag

re
em

en
t

fo
r

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

of
on

e
or

m
or

e
20

21
to

d
ev

el
o

p
er

s
P

H
U

R
A

pr
op

er
ti

es
.

5.
a.

2.
B

as
ed

on
ou

tc
om

e
of

(1
),

co
ns

id
er

lis
tin

g
C

E
D

E
V

/C
M

-
Ja

n
.

C
om

pl
et

ed
2

pa
rc

el
s

to
P

ho
od

er
y

-
N

o
re

m
ai

ni
ng

P
H

U
R

A
pr

op
er

ti
es

an
d/

or
ot

he
rw

is
e

20
22

ot
he

r
(4

th
/B

ea
r

C
re

ek
so

li
ci

ti
ng

pr
op

os
al

fo
r

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

D
r)

li
st

ed
5.

a.
3.

In
v

es
ti

g
at

e
u

si
n

g
m

o
n
ey

ra
is

ed
C

E
D

E
V

IC
M

-
D

ec
.

In
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t
P

ro
p

er
ty

p
u
rc

h
as

ed
.

N
o

th
ro

u
g
h

PH
U

R
A

p
ro

p
er

ty
sa

le
an

d
o
r

20
22

C
o
n
tr

ac
t

fo
r

d
es

ig
n

re
fi

n
an

ci
n

g
ci

vi
c

ce
n

te
r

b
o
n
d

to
d
ev

el
o
p

ex
ec

u
te

d
.

sh
ar

ed
p
ar

k
in

g
th

at
co

u
ld

b
en

ef
it

th
e

P
re

se
n
te

d
re

q
u
es

t
to

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t

of
o
th

er
PH

U
R

A
p
ro

p
er

ti
es

C
D

B
G

-D
R

,
a

lo
ng

w
it

h
th

e
d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t

of
o
th

er
P

IE
R

S
el

ec
ti

o
n

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

w
it

hi
n

th
e

u
rb

an
re

ne
w

al
d

is
tr

ic
t

C
o
m

m
it

te
e.

b
o

u
n

d
ar

y
.

5.
b.

1.
Im

pr
ov

e
w

eb
si

te
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
fo

r
C

E
D

E
V

-
M

ar
.

In
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t
C

o
o
rd

in
at

e
w

it
h

ne
w

Y
es

PH
U

R
A

.
20

22
W

eb
si

te
.

6.
a.

1.
C

om
m

un
ic

at
e

th
e

d
es

ir
e

to
u

se
lo

ca
l

C
E

D
E

V
/C

M
-

C
om

pl
et

ed
N

o
fi

rm
s

in
de

si
gn

an
d

bu
ild

to
pr

oj
ec

t
m

an
ag

er
s

on
go

in
g

an
d

ot
he

r
co

ll
ab

or
at

or
s.

6.
a.

2.
A

s
m

uc
h

as
po

ss
ib

le
,

pr
ov

id
e

p
re

fe
re

n
ce

C
E

D
E

V
/C

M
-

C
om

pl
et

ed
N

o
to

lo
ca

l
ex

p
er

ie
n
ce

in
se

le
ct

io
n

p
ro

ce
ss

.
on

go
in

g
6.

b.
1

R
ep

or
t

to
C

ou
nc

il
on

th
e

av
ai

la
bl

e
C

E
D

E
V

/C
M

-
D

ec
.

C
om

pl
et

ed
N

o
co

nt
ra

ct
in

g
op

ti
on

s
an

d
th

e
pr

os
an

d
co

ns
of

20
21

ea
ch

.
6.

c.
1.

P
u

rs
u

e
S

ta
te

,
F

ed
er

al
an

d
p
ri

v
at

e
C

E
D

E
V

IC
M

-
O

n
g

o
in

g
N

o
g
ra

n
ts

.
o
n
g
o
in

g
6.

d.
1.

In
ve

st
ig

at
e

op
ti

on
s

fo
r

si
ti

ng
of

te
m

po
ra

ry
C

E
D

E
V

/C
M

-M
ar

.
C

om
pl

et
ed

C
om

bi
ne

d
u
se

of
N

o
fa

ci
li

ti
es

an
d

th
ei

r
re

la
ti

ve
st

re
n
g
th

s
in

pr
ov

id
in

g
20

22
C

iv
ic

C
en

te
r

th
ro

ug
h

co
nt

in
ua

ti
on

of
C

ity
se

rv
ic

es
.

M
ar

ch
20

24

3

6868



6.
d.

2.
U

se
hy

br
id

w
or

k
sc

h
ed

u
le

w
ith

re
m

ot
e

C
E

D
E

V
/C

M
-D

ec
.

O
ng

oi
ng

N
o

w
or

k
w

he
n

po
ss

ib
le

w
hi

le
us

in
g

te
m

po
ra

ry
20

23
fa

ci
li

ti
es

.
11

.a
.1

.
C

on
ti

nu
e

to
ut

ili
ze

ex
is

ti
ng

gr
an

t
fu

nd
s

C
E

D
E

V
/C

M
/P

W
-

O
ng

oi
ng

In
ve

st
ig

at
in

g
po

ss
ib

le
N

o
an

d
to

in
ve

st
ig

at
e

th
e

po
ss

ib
il

it
y

of
ad

di
ti

on
al

on
go

in
g

u
se

of
C

D
B

G
-D

R
,

fu
nd

in
g

to
he

lp
w

ith
pa

rk
P

IE
R

fu
nd

s
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t/
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

11
.b

.1
.

T
he

P
ol

ic
e

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

ac
ti

ve
ly

PD
-

on
go

in
g

O
ng

oi
ng

N
o

en
fo

rc
es

th
e

no
ca

m
pi

ng
or

di
na

nc
e.

11
.c

.1
.

U
se

fu
nd

in
g

av
ai

la
bl

e
th

ro
ug

h
FE

M
A

,
C

M
/P

W
-

Ju
n.

C
om

pl
et

ed
P

la
yg

ro
un

d
o

p
en

ed
N

o
B

u
si

n
es

s
O

re
go

n
an

d
in

su
ra

n
ce

to
re

pl
ac

e
th

e
20

22
su

m
m

er
20

22
pl

ay
gr

ou
nd

w
hi

le
al

so
pr

ov
id

in
g

fo
r

en
h
an

ce
d

ac
ce

ss
ib

il
it

y
an

d
fi

re
re

si
li

en
cy

.
11

.c
.2

.
C

re
at

e
ad

-h
o
c

co
m

m
it

te
e

to
he

lp
in

fu
nd

C
M

/P
W

-
Ju

n.
C

om
pl

et
ed

P
ri

va
te

an
d

co
rp

or
at

e
N

o
ra

is
in

g
fo

r
ot

he
r

pl
ay

gr
ou

nd
en

h
an

ce
m

en
ts

no
t

20
22

d
o

n
at

io
n

s/
g

ra
n

ts
re

ce
iv

ed
to

co
ve

re
d

by
gr

an
ts

.
co

ve
r

ad
di

ti
on

al
ex

p
en

se
s

11
.c

.3
.

U
se

ad
-h

oc
co

m
m

it
te

e
to

he
lp

C
M

/P
W

-
Ju

n.
C

om
pl

et
ed

P
la

yg
ro

un
d

o
p

en
ed

N
o

or
ga

ni
zi

ng
gr

ou
nd

br
ea

ki
ng

,
gr

an
d

op
en

in
g,

an
d

20
22

su
m

m
er

20
22

ot
he

r
ev

en
ts

re
la

te
d

to
pl

ay
gr

ou
nd

re
pl

ac
em

en
t.

11
.d

.1
.

U
pd

at
e

P
ar

k
M

as
te

r
P

la
n

to
ac

co
u

n
t

C
E

D
E

V
-
Ju

n
.

In
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

U
G

B
ex

p
an

d
ed

D
ec

em
be

r
N

o
fo

r
U

G
B

ex
p
an

si
o
n
.

20
23

20
22

.
G

ra
nt

re
ce

iv
ed

fo
r

PM
P

u
p
d
at

e.
11

.d
.3

.
U

se
up

da
te

d
P

ar
ks

M
as

te
r

P
la

n
as

th
e

C
E

D
E

V
-

on
go

in
g

O
ng

oi
ng

N
o

b
as

is
fo

r
gr

an
t

fu
nd

in
g

to
im

pr
ov

e
pa

rk
sy

st
em

.
11

.e
.1

.
W

he
n

th
e

ne
w

fa
ci

li
ti

es
ar

e
co

m
pl

et
ed

,
PD

-
Ju

n.
20

24
O

ng
oi

ng
N

o
ac

ti
va

te
a

V
ol

un
te

er
In

P
ol

ic
e

S
er

v
ic

es
(V

IP
S

)
pr

og
ra

m
an

d
u
se

vo
lu

nt
ee

rs
to

pa
tr

ol
pa

rk
s

an
d

g
re

en
w

ay
ar

ea
s.

11
.f.

1.
If

bu
dg

et
is

av
ai

la
bl

e,
hi

re
lim

ite
d

C
E

D
E

V
-

Ju
n.

A
ss

o
ci

at
e

P
la

nn
er

2
n
d

P
ho

en
ix

R
is

in
g

Y
es

du
ra

ti
on

S
en

io
r/

A
ss

oc
ia

te
P

la
n
n
er

po
si

ti
on

to
20

22
H

ir
ed

4/
11

/2
02

2
S

ep
te

m
b
er

20
23

.
ai

d
in

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
C

om
m

un
it

y
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

ev
en

ts
fo

cu
se

d
on

em
er

g
en

cy
p
re

p
ar

ed
n
es

s
C

on
ti

nu
e

to
de

ve
lo

p
ot

he
r

ev
en

ts
.

4

6969



an
d

re
si

li
en

cy
,

an
d

al
so

ai
d

in
th

e
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
of

sm
al

le
r,

m
or

e
fr

eq
ue

nt
,

fa
m

ily
fr

ie
nd

ly
ev

en
ts

14
.a

.1
.

R
eg

ul
ar

m
ee

ti
n
g
s/

d
is

cu
ss

io
n

w
ith

C
M

-
on

go
in

g
O

ng
oi

ng
N

o
re

gi
on

al
p

ar
tn

er
s

to
se

ek
op

po
rt

un
it

ie
s

fo
r

pl
an

ni
ng

an
d

pr
oj

ec
ts

of
m

ut
ua

l
in

te
re

st
.

14
.b

.1
.

If
bu

dg
et

is
av

ai
la

bl
e,

hi
re

lim
ite

d
C

E
D

E
V

/P
D

-
Ju

n.
A

ss
o
ci

at
e

P
la

nn
er

2
n
d

P
ho

en
ix

R
is

in
g

Y
es

du
ra

ti
on

S
en

io
r/

A
ss

oc
ia

te
P

la
nn

er
po

si
ti

on
to

20
22

H
ir

ed
4/

11
/2

02
2

S
ep

te
m

b
er

20
23

.
ai

d
in

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
fa

m
ily

fr
ie

nd
ly

ev
en

ts
in

In
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

P
ho

en
ix

th
at

ca
n

al
so

ed
u
ca

te
th

e
pu

bl
ic

ab
ou

t
O

n
sc

h
ed

u
le

E
ve

rb
ri

dg
e

an
d

ev
ac

ua
ti

on
zo

n
es

.
14

.b
.2

.
P

ro
vi

de
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
ab

ou
t

E
ve

rb
ri

dg
e

C
R

/C
E

D
E

V
/P

D
-

O
ng

oi
ng

N
o

an
d

ev
ac

ua
ti

on
zo

n
es

in
C

ity
ne

w
sl

et
te

r
an

d
on

go
in

g
m

on
th

ly
pu

bl
ic

an
n
o
u
n
ce

m
en

ts
.

14
.c

.1
.

If
bu

dg
et

is
av

ai
la

bl
e,

hi
re

lim
ite

d
C

E
D

E
V

-
Ja

n.
A

ss
o
ci

at
e

P
la

nn
er

P
la

nn
in

g
an

d
re

co
ve

ry
N

o
du

ra
ti

on
S

en
io

r/
A

ss
oc

ia
te

P
la

nn
er

po
si

ti
on

to
20

22
H

ir
ed

4/
11

/2
02

2
ef

fo
rt

s
on

go
in

g
ai

d
w

ith
lo

ng
-r

an
ge

pl
an

ni
ng

ef
fo

rt
s

re
la

te
d

to
In

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
fi

re
re

co
ve

ry
an

d
U

G
B

ex
pa

ns
io

n.
O

n
sc

h
ed

u
le

14
.d

.1
.

P
ro

vi
de

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

ab
o
u
t

de
fe

ns
ib

le
C

R
/C

E
D

E
V

-
O

ng
oi

ng
N

o
sp

ac
e

in
C

ity
ne

w
sl

et
te

r
an

d
m

on
th

ly
pu

bl
ic

on
go

in
g

an
n
o
u
n
ce

m
en

ts
.

14
.e

.1
.

If
b
u
d
g
et

is
av

ai
la

b
le

,
hi

re
li

m
it

ed
C

E
D

E
V

-
Ja

n
.

A
ss

o
ci

at
e

P
la

n
n
er

E
m

er
g

en
cy

o
p
er

at
io

n
s

N
o

d
u
ra

ti
o
n

S
en

io
rl

A
ss

o
ci

at
e

P
la

n
n
er

p
o
si

ti
o
n

20
22

H
ir

ed
41

11
12

02
2

p
la

n
n

in
g

o
n
g
o
in

g
.

N
ew

to
ai

d
w

it
h

em
er

g
en

cy
o
p
er

at
io

n
s

p
la

n
n
in

g
.

In
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t
D

ep
ut

y
C

M
as

si
g

n
ed

E
m

er
g

en
cy

M
an

ag
em

en
t

d
u
ti

es
.

14
.f

.1
.

If
bu

dg
et

is
av

ai
la

bl
e,

hi
re

lim
ite

d
C

E
D

E
V

-
Ja

n.
A

ss
o
ci

at
e

P
la

nn
er

U
G

B
ex

pa
ns

io
n

an
d

N
o

du
ra

ti
on

S
en

io
r/

A
ss

oc
ia

te
P

la
nn

er
po

si
ti

on
to

20
22

H
ir

ed
4/

11
/2

02
2

re
co

ve
ry

ai
d

w
ith

lo
ng

-r
an

ge
pl

an
ni

ng
ef

fo
rt

s
re

la
te

d
to

In
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

ef
fo

rt
s

on
go

in
g

fi
re

re
co

ve
ry

an
d

U
G

B
ex

pa
ns

io
n.

O
n

sc
h
ed

u
le

S

7070


	DOC023.pdf
	DOC022.pdf



